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In 2007, Palitical uncertainties, the strengthen of the Baht and continuing construction cost
escalation, resulted in a reduction in Government project activity, fewer new investment projects from the
private sector. Total in spite of these disadvantages, Sino-Thai earned construction and service revenue of
Baht 17,282 million. Unfortunately this acceptable growth of 17 percent YoY, generated profit of Baht
22 million for the company.

Although the rising cost of oil and steel had a detrimental affect on profit forecasts the overall
impact was the rising costs of raw materials and increased demands by China and India that combined to
drive construction material costs to record setting levels. The impact of these increases was felt in all
sectors but was especially devastating on Government Projects as a result of the outdated pricing data
used for budget preparation. In spite of everything, we have maintained a healthy financial position with
total assets of Baht 14,026 million, total liabilities of Baht 10,133 million and shareholders’ equity of Baht
3,893 million.

With the new Government in place and hopefully stabilized, we expect an increase in both
Government and Private Projects such as mass transit, petrochemical and power plants.

At year end, 2007, our Backlog of orders more than Baht 20,000 million which is considered to be
more than sufficient to carry us into 2008. From 2008 forward, Sino-Thai will refocus on Project
Profitability and avoid under budgeted projects which lack acceptable construction cost escalation
provisions.

It is recognized that the competition for such preferred projects will be fierce but our long standing
excellent reputation with our valued customers and creditability with suppliers and financial institutions
alike, will combine to move Sino-Thai to the top of most preferred contractor of Thailand and regional.

Our continued emphasis on corporate good governance, personnel development and equipment
upgrading is progressing and will continue to move forward in conjunction with our first priority — safety.

Sino-Thai continues to contribute to and support our employee initiated “Pay Back Program” and will
do so in the future. In 2007, Sino-Thai and its employees continued to construct school buildings, libraries
and donate scholarships, school supplies and sport equipment to schools in need.

On behalf of Sino-Thai, | wish to express my sincere thanks to all of our shareholders, clients,
partners, financial institutions and other related corporations and individuals, as well as, the executives and

employees of Sino-Thai for their continued support of and contribution to the Company in 2007.

£ V.l

Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

President
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Company Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited

[

Nature of Business Construction

Registration Number 0107536001001 (Bor Mor Jor 174)

Address 32/59-60, 29"-30"" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower, Asoke Road,
Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana, Bangkok 10110

Tel: +66 (0) 261 0-4900 Fax: +66 (0) 2260-1333
www.stecon.co.th

1,350,250,000 Baht
1,186,208,6138 Baht

Registered Capital
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Issued and (as at December 21, 2007)

Paid-up Capital

Listed Securities Common Share (STEC) 1,186,208,619
Warrant (STEC-W) 169,757,080
Warrant 2 (STEC-W2) 6,451,539

shares
units

units

200S 2006

2007

Private Sector
3L%

Private Sector
31%

Public Sector
(including State Enterprise)
66%

Public Sector
(including State Enterprise)
69%

Private Sector
30%

Public Sector
(including State Enterprise)
70%



Policy in 2007
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DO IT RIGHT

MAKE IT HAPPEN
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wuRa (dmum) Balance Sheet (Mil. Baht)
Aunswevymiion Current Assets 9610 10,663 7.939
Aunsweisin Total Assets 14,027 15,787 12,513
mf:ﬁumguﬁﬂu Current Liabilities 9,673 10,802 7,199
MRAUTIN Total Liabilities 10,134 11,877 8,393
a'mﬂa\ig]:ﬁaﬁu Shareholders’ Equity 3,893 3,910 4120
\‘.11.|ﬁ'ﬂit|'1ﬂ‘/lq% @ wum) Income Statement (Mil. Baht)
Tldanmsads Revenue from Construction 17,282 14,707 13111
Talsisn Total Revenue 17473 14,817 13,209
AUNNNSAaET Y Cost of Construction 16,981 16214 12,362
AldTelunsenalazums Selling & Administrative Expense 351 254 295
ﬂamﬁmim Interest Expense 94 104 72
6 | flsds Gross Profit 300 (1,507) 749

lsawa Net Profit 22 (1,780) 473
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ARSIAIUNINTT Financial Ratio

SR UL (W) Current Ratio (Times) 0.99 0.99 110
dnsINsvywl Iunzaedunsneg (W) Total Assets Turnover (Times) 117 1405 1.29
é"mﬁmmﬁﬁuﬁiafhuﬁa\jﬁﬁaﬁu (1) Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 2.60 3.04 2.04
Sl siuge (%) Gross Profit Margin 1.74% (10.25%) 5.71%
ﬁ'ﬁliﬂﬁ’mﬁﬂiqwﬁ (%) Net Profit Margin 0.12% (12.01%) 3.58%
SR HARaUULARLTaL (%) Return on Equities 0.56% (44.32%) 12.84%
Haﬁhmmﬁmﬂﬁaﬁu (v ) Book Value per Share (Baht) 3.28 3.30 4.02
ﬁﬂia}wﬁﬁiaﬁuﬁuﬁugm (L) Earning per Share (Baht) 0.02 (s 0.46

mlsgmamativ (Usuan) (Um) Earning per Share (Fully diluted) (Baht) 0.02 (1.51) 0.45




£00¢ 140d3d TYNNNY

Total Liabilities

Total Assets

Mil. Baht

Mil. Baht

20,000 - Fil oo W

Year

2007

2006

200S

10,000
8,000
6000 .4l
4,000
2,000

Year

2007

15,787

15,000
10,000 b
5,000

Shareholders’ Equity

Total Revenue

Mil. Baht

Mil. Baht

20,000 -

L0000 @

000

1S

3,000
2,000

10,000 oo
5,000

SN () () @) T ——

Year

2006 2007

200S

2006 2007 Year

200S

Net Profit

Mil. Baht

473

= ME=H I

22

Year

2007

200S

-1,000

B i) § B T ST

=2 O ) e . v e (A0 U o i 11 | L



g o

v m.mﬂu_‘ﬂﬂi e

SINO-THAT ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION Plc.
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Qur Vision is to continue to move forward and become the leading
Engineering and Construction firm in Thailand and eventually the region,
while delivering projects that consistently meet international standards.

o
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The best for people deliver the best quality project.
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Adhere to the agreement.
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Highly skilled workforce proven record
of successful projects.
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MANINSINMSHIANTS

Advisors to President P
|

fhﬁnnﬁumiﬁﬁ'ﬂmi

Executive Office

|
o
dninngnane
Legal Section
d
o
LHUNAINUADRASY
Safety Section
<

i 4
JIAINTIIWLAY
Senior Executive
Vice President
Special Division

s
denUfURNIS
Senior Executive
Vice President
Operation Division

v

|

.

Q’zlhuniiun'ﬁg'ﬁ'ﬂmi
dwnUfuRn1g 1
Senior Vice President
Operation Division 1

A\ 4

euuRnig 1
Operation
Department 1

*

pjtlzhunﬁun'ﬁg'{ﬁ'ﬂn1'i

dmeuugiRns 2
Senior Vice President
Operation Division 2

euusnig 2
Operation
Department 2

euiRnig 3
Operation
Department 3

v

deufuRnms 4
Operation
Department 4

eUfuRnig
(TRS9N1SWLAY)

Operation Department
(Special Project)

<

HEENSTHNISEIANS
AMTHINATIALAZRRIW
Senior Vice President

Technical & Development
v

theiASaviiana

Construction Equipment

Department
> p

quﬂ'u%msq’ﬂnicuf
ANSNaEs1v

Construction Asset
Management Section

>

LRWNTAINTTHN

Engineering
Service Section

>

LlNHﬂU%‘IMiF!mn']W

Quality Management
Section

UHURNTILUNWULAZAIUAN

Planning &
Control Section

>




AKSAFIINANIUIEN
Board of Directors

v
L AWZNFINNITIRIIINDY

Audit Committee
v

ASINASHIANTS

President
A\ 4

WHWARSIIdaUNE ]

‘Internal Audit Section
| 4

AUNBUSIAAN
Quality Management

Representative

Senior Executive
Vice President

Financial & Administration
Division
v

N (—

N178NSINN1SHAANS N1I8NSINNTSEIANTS
AIMIUNISAATR FIUIIUUING

Senior Vice President Senior Vice President
Marketing Division Administration Division
v v
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Estimation Inventory Control Accounting
Department Department Department

WG rednde remsiuLazNSAYU
Business Development Procurement Financial & Investment
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Chairman of the Board

o IASUNRANANET WHNINEAART
TsuiSeuansasaslavy

o USTETUALZNTINANG
una, Slu-lne Budidesy waus
ADWARTATLA

¢ High school, Science Program,
Satri Si Suriyothai School

e (Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction
Plc.

N358Ng
UseE1UNUSNEIAMENSINATTUTEN

Director
Chairman of the Advisory Board

. U%mmwﬂ%ﬂmwawﬁﬁmﬁmﬁmﬁuﬁﬂﬁ
(@121UAMN993113) NNTIMENAUTINAILNAG

o USnuanlns vangasinendollaod
TaWENTMAETIMENAW (Usa. ufl 3)

o USEUEUIAS LASHEANARS NIvENaY
FIINFNEART

o nugalnaffinfiadng Ussmeundaitafid
Usdssmlng

o NTTMMIUAUSEWAVINWIAGNTINMG
una. Alu-le 1BuITeSs uous AoUARSATL

o USZETHAMNTINATT UNA. Laafif waus Lo

o USTEMUAWINSINNTG VAN, 1ad 7 815

o NS5NMS UNA. Filne

* N35M3 VAN, Wasandlny

o UANIABKENITNMIAMEATMNITH
wisUszinAlne

o USEEMUNTINMS A0TRINANLAZIMANNAD
wiAvUszmelve

o N9IHNT UAN. UM UNA

+ N35M3 van. vanniwd la 3 Tnavaa

o UBNYT FNANIASHIAERT
NN IMUFUEIINFERT

o AORNITNMSARRNANG efw3Sasy

o SFNWASEILTINTG NFZVTIINISAAY

e Honorary Doctoral Degree in Business
Administration, Ramkhamhaeng University

e Degree, The National Defence Course for
Joint-State-Private College, National
Defence College (Por. Ror. Or. Brd Class)

e B. Economics, Thammasat University

e Honorary Consulate General of
Papua New Guinea, Thailand

e Director and Chairman of the Advisary
Board, Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Plc.

e Chairman of the Board, STP & | Plc.

e Chairman of the Board, HTR Corporation
Limited

e Directar, Viny Thai Plc.

e Director, Peroxy Thai Co., Ltd.

e The Advisory Board, The Federations of
Thai Industries

e Chairman of the Board, Iron and Steel
Institute of Thailand

e Director, Sun Paratec Co., Ltd.

e Director, I.V. Global Securities co., Ltd.

e Advisor, Economics Institute,
Thammasat University

e Honorary Director, Thai Country Club

¢ Deputy Minister, Ministry of Finance,
Thailand

N99HN9

Director

o SgUszAnauAaRsIMTn TsulSeunesay
1999 ‘;iu,ﬁ 13

o USuaning vendedoviusiganoning
it 29

o n550Ms uxa. Blu-lne Budidess wons
AEWARSAZY

o UZEMUNTINNG VAN, DAL USEAE
(2000)

o UBMWNIINNIT VAN, DALueUSzAndIn

o U5281UN95NNT VAN, DALLELAUTRaA

o SORGUA NINFNTIA
+ N330M3 E5MFNTIMTIAMA
(2 dalt)
 N3TNNITALLZNIINNNTASIAFDUNIATIANTG
N92NINGAAN

19
e B. Public Administration, Police Academy L
th
13" Class
e (Certificate, The National Defence College S
th S
29 Class ~
&
e
2
e Director, Sino-Thai Engineering and g
Construction Plc. %
e Chairman of the Directors, The
Southeast Insurance (2000) Co., Ltd.

e Chairman of the Director, Southeast Life
Insurance Co., Ltd.

e Chairman of the Director, Southeast
Capital Co., Ltd.

e Deputy Chief of Police, Royal Thai Police

e Director, Governmental Police Official

e Director of the Audit Committee
Government Sector, Ministry of Finance
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Independent Director
Chairman of the Audit Committee

o USMSENINMIUIMIR AT INENAUEIIHANERT

o Uszmabinsdugy MIuSmsiAsegiaaneiems
amtunszuningn

o UpAinein M InenNauaIINAERT

o NITWMFBATIUATUTZEIMAMZNTINNTATINEEY VKA,

Fu-lne (Fusiiesy vous Rauansadn

o NSNS UNA. LOETIR waus 1o

o NSINNISUAZNTINNISASINEDY UNA. INBLNNSH
WARAD

o UTEmNTINMs usa. e uaulnea asUaisdn

o N39MMT UNA. 82105 BufAASea unoBuue’

« USZEIUNSTNNT VAN, WENYITWIRANNANTTH

+ NIINMSEEWIBNS van. Lianadunn

o fUSnwIAMNIINMS AnTRnanuAzIANNE g
Uszmdlne

o S0UUIIEMNTINMS UNA. uAsneansUTa

+  NINNSUAZIBINTINMSEIANG UNA. 18 71 1od
dfia n3u

o fUBNwUTEMANNSIINEMINSEoansuas
TnspnmIAN M3sdaansuazinsasuiAn amifun
1843

. ﬁu%m:nﬂm:al{,ﬂiimﬁmiﬁmﬁmﬁnmLme\mﬁ’La
ﬂfymmirﬁwLﬁuﬁﬂmiﬁmmiﬁamma:miaumﬂ

*  NIINNMSENTIADKANAZNTIHNTUTS AnTUnGn
uazmannauUssAlve

¢ MBA, Thammasat University
e Graduate Diploma in Management of Public
Economy, King Prajadhipok’s Institute

e B.Account, Thammasat University

¢ Independent Director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee, Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc.

e Director, STP & | Ple.

e Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Thai Theparos Food Products Plc.

e Chairman of the Board, Thai Capital
Corporation Plc.

¢ Director, Agro Industrial Machinery Plc.

e Chairman of the Board of Directors, Burapa
Steel Industries Co., Ltd.

e President, CJ Morgan Co., Ltd.

e Chairman of the Advisory Board, Iron and

Steel Institute of Thailand

¢ Vice President, Nakorn Thai Strip Mill Plc.

e Director and Vice President, NTS Steel
Group Plc.

e Chairman of the Advisory Communications and
Transportation Commission

e The Advisory of Subcommittee in Solutions for
Communications and Information Technology

¢ Qualified Director and Executive Director, Iron

and Steel Institute of Thailand

NSINN198852
N55NN15ASI9daY

Independent Director
Member of the Audit Committee

o NIINMSHATIUAZNTINNGATIVNOY UNA.
Fu-lne 1BuSiiesy uaus Aevansndn

o NIINMSUAZNITHNNITATIAFDU
UNA. LT Laws la

o N9INNS VAN, 2R UIiwAY (2000)

o N9INNS VAN, D AmUSEAUdTIR

e N39MM15 van. LAUTRaa

o NIINMSAASZUAZNITNNIGATIVFDY
van. lnednanidui

* NIFINMIANEMTIAMA N Inendusany
aaasnsnd luwszusnagudng

e NINMNS SWIATIDDNEY

* NSIMMT BUANTSHTY NINATINEAR

e LL.M, Chulalongkorn University
e LL.B, Ramkhamhaeng University

¢ |Independent Director and Member of
the Audit Committee, Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Plc.

e Director and Member of the Audit
Committee, STP & | Plc.

e Director, Southeast Insurance (2000)
Co,, Ltd.

e Director, Southeast Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

e Director, Capital Co,, Ltd.

¢ Independent Director and Member of
the Audit Committee, Thai Heat
Exchange Plc.

e Honorary Director, Rajabhat
Walaialongkorn University Under Royal
Patronage

e Director, Government Savings Bank

e Director, Liquor Distillery Organization

(Excise Department)

NSINN198AS2
AS5NN15ASIIHaU

Independent Director
Member of the Audit Committee

« UIMNsgshanuidin aminendbeluand
Sulmasiudunua ansganEm

o N93NNNSHATTUAZNTINNSATINEDY UNA.
Flu-ng 1SuIes waus AauaRsSATY

o AFINATUTYNG VAN, FUnA JuLATU
Twsiaady

* NITNMUTNT VAN, BAYS dbla Jad
KRR

e Ph.0. Business Administration, United

International University — USA

¢ Independent Director and Member of
the Audit Committee, Sino-Thai

Engineering and Construction Plc. 21
e Executive Director, Suntec Scrap
~
Processing Co., Ltd. §
e Executive Director, Chonburi Steel Mill o~
o
Services Co,, Ltd. &
—
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NSSNAS8d52

Independent Director

o USnanuiiniainfiadngd a1endnnmsaosnn

o n9suMsdass vaa. 8u-lne 15udiiudy waus
PEUARSAT

o USZEIMNTIHANS UAN. 108 7 Suimasiuduuna
wazusimluiase

o A3INNMSUSMS dnmamsiuieuseinalng

* NITUMSUTNS ANNQRAMNITNWATUIEWALTEY

« N33NM3 ErEmswaiSan adui 3

* NITUMIEVTAMIAN AMZNTTNNTAANAN

o U874 .NN. "’Jmﬁnaur"imﬁunﬁdmﬂ%u
WFusssniRoTemslaazan

o USIETU BN AT 1 SWMSTRAaNYE
IUNTBUTRIMATNENITIIM AR UL
uazandusloan

o Ua5m AN INSTUUUSIMIUUARANASY
Aokl 2 FumsaouaziRAAAKINASY

o WHNAMIMANENGBATET 2 N Inendusady
MEAkYS

* NITUMSEVTAMIN AMZNTINNITNTYANAN

o NITUMTERUAUL SZVUTIVIRLULYININIG

e Honorary Doctoral Degree in Quality

Management

¢ Independent Director, Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc.

e Chairman of the Board, SP International and
Groups Co., Ltd.

¢ Executive Director, Chamber of Commerce

e Executive Director, The Federation of Thai
Industry

¢ Director, Office of the Civil Service
Commission

¢ (Qualified Director, Higher Education
Committee

e Chairman of the Subcommittee of Civil
Service Commission in Supporting Ethics to
Government Officer

e Chairman of the Subcommittee of Civil
Service Commission in Privileges and
Remuneration for Government Officer

e Chairman of the Subcommittee of Civil
Service Commission in Extraordinary
Governmental Human Resource
Management for Manpower

e Chairman of Rajabhat Karnchanaburi
University Chamber

e Honorary Director, Commission on Higher
Education

e Director, Provincial Integration System

Support

NSINN198852

Independent Director

o USMSgIfiaNmUmin M ineauADSLLA
ANs30LMEM

o FFINTINAERSNITWAR (E27lWAN)
NVTIENABASUUA dVsFaLNEM

o n55uMsdasy vna. dlu-lne 15udtese
Laus AaLERTATLL
. niimmipﬁmmi Uan. 1wAlTURaa

o ATINMIUIMT AR, Wik

o AIINMIUIIT van. Wiiue

+ NSINN590UNINMSHIANTS
van. nannsue Asduallnea

¢ MBA Finance, Cornell University - USA
e M.S. Electrical Engineering, Cornell
University - USA

¢ Independent Director, Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Plc.

¢ Managing Director, Sage Capital Co.,
Ltd.

e Executive Director, Finansa Securities Co.,
Ltd.

e Executive Director, Finansa Co., Ltd.

e Senior Executive Vice President, Cathay
Capital Co., Ltd.
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e MBA. International Business, University
of Southern California — USA
e B. Business Administration,

Chulalongkorn University
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e Director, Sino-Thai Engineering and

Construction Ple.

e Director and Managing Directaor,
STP & | Ple.

¢ Managing Director and Director,
STIT Co,, Ltd.

e Director, Inter IMC Pte. Ltd.

e Director, Sino-Thai
Development Co,, Ltd.

e Director, C.T. Venture Co., Ltd.

e Director, Clough Sino-Thai Co., Ltd.

e Marketing Manager, Siam Cement —

Dow Chemical Joint Venture
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+ NIIHMSEHIAMS van. sumd Sumas
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¢ B. Political Science, Thammasat

University

e Director, Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Plc.

e Director, HTR Corporation Ltd.

e Managing Director, Stacey International
Co,, Ltd.
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Director ¢ President
Chairman of the Executive Committee
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e Executive MBA. Chulalongkarn University

¢ Graduate Diploma in Management of
Government and Private Sectors, King
Prajadhipok’s Institute

e B.S. Engineering, Chiang Mai University

e Director, President and Chairman of the
Executive Committee, Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Plc.

e Director, BDKK Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Co., Ltd.

e Director, P.P. Coral Resort Co., Ltd.

e Director and Chairman, Chiang Mai
University Alumni Association, Chiang

Mai University

e Senior Executive Vice President
Operation Division, Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc.

e Director, STP & | Plc.

e Director, Thai Contractors Association
Under H.M.The King's Patronage
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Director « Executive Committee
SEVP. Financial and Administration
Division
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e MPA. Public Policy & Project
Management, NIDA
e BBA. Finance & Banking, Thammasat

University
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e Director, Executive Committee, SEVP.

Financial and Administrative Division,

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction
Plc.

e Director, HTR Corporation Ltd.

e Director, Thai Maintenance Contracting
Co,, Ltd.

e Director, P.P. Coral Resort Co., Ltd.

e Director, DKK Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Co., Ltd.

e Director, Chiyoda (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

e Director, Patumwan Real Estate Co., Ltd.

e Finance & Accounting Department

Manager




Executive Committee
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Mr.Vallop Rungkijvorasathien
President
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Mr.Woraphant Chontong
Senior Executive Vice President
Financial & Administration Division
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Mr.Pakpoom Srichamni

Senior Executive Vice President
Operation Division
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AwauUfuRnng 1
Mr.Varatt Kusolmanomai
Senior Vice President
Operation DBivision 1

wiwaedy §199NUSEESY
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AuwmUfiiins 2

Mr.Chanchai Thanrukprasert
Senior Vice President
Operation Division 2

WINUSZLASY AVLATTHE SN
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Mr.Prasert Kongkauroptham
Senior Vice President
Marketing Division

WILGIWIF FFTUUA
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Mr.Teeraphong Wichiranon
Senior Vice President
Administration Division

Assistant to President
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Mr.Prayoon Lertanuntasuk
Advisor to President

Mr.Robert L. De Sonier
Assistant to President

Mr.John Skinner
Assistant to President

Mr.Tadao Suzuki
Assistant to President
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h
As of the latest registration book closing on April 4t , 2007, the 10 largest shareholders are:

1 WINAUDIUY mqﬁiga (Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul) 189,845,280 16.03
2 NORBAX INC.13 61,300,000 517
3 muavgﬁu m;ﬁma (Mr. Anutin Charnvirakul) 50,000,000 422
4 The Bank of New Yark (nominees) Limited 45,731,500 3.86
5 USWW neduisens $Am (Thai NVDR Company Limited) 44,625,373 377
B wWas1 335miiatin (Mrs. Patchara Jiraratsatit) 44,151,590 373
7 State Street Bank and Trust Company, for London 35,905,600 3.03
8 HSBC Bank PLC-Clients General A/C 35,776,100 3.02
9 USH BATR WA Sm (Equity Plus Company Limited) 35,702,210 3.01
10 State Street Bank and Trust Company for Australia, 30,928,800 2.61

| owa Y add o o & d o o 4 va v oo d
ngufjeludAnuanuivsaitafuadny (ASua 2) (STEC-wa) qudn 10 18 o UnyBsiedaiau Jun 28 unvAn 2551

h
As of the latest registration book closing on January EBt , 2008, the 10 largest warrant holders (STEC-W2) are:

1 uan. Audsurnvanning (Uszmelne) Lﬁaé’mn’luﬂizmﬂ 162,871,233 99.59
(Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited for Depositors (Local)
2 WIIANNITIO ﬁLﬂwqa (Mrs. Ampawan Viseskul) 257,566 016
3 w.d. U381 wAdaudn (Ms. Preeya Vongsongja) 193,266 012
4 wd aam d9Wwlsad (Ms. Ladda Sujjaphanra)) 151,100 0.09
5 US¥ Luafawmu 9715 (Benjakij Patana Co., Ltd) 50,000 0.03
8  wd anm d2Wulsad (Ms. Ladda Sujjaphanro)) 8,333 0.01
7 WIEEY Lﬂ'uaqa (Mr. Pin Densakul) 5,000 0.00
8 wieduA AN3NEIWAT (Mr. Chaisiri Supparakjinda) 3,333 0.00
] . quﬁ Wg3e1n5 (Ms. Sunee Phayurayat) 3,166 0.00
10 ww#Rsd yda (Mr. Chatchai Boonlue) 1,666 0.00
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UsEn 1od 7 819 AR

32/11-12 0. Jgain 21 ARBVLABLYATE
TRIUT NUH

nsFwyi +66 (0) 2259-8911

5815 +66 (0) 2259-8919

HTR Corporation Ltd.

32/11-12, Sukhumvit 21,

Wattana, Bangkok

Tel: +66 (0) 2259-8911

Fax: +66 (0) 2259-8919

TAsIAS1NENLEEN

WhI 500,000,000 80.90 40,449,995 404,499,950
AAINENNSWE

Real Estate
Development

ustn Aae Blu-lne (Fuididese Sm
151/6-9 vy 6 AAW LA 8. dukoe
AWITUATATDLEEN

nsFwV +66 (0) 3521 -5014-6
nsans +66 (0) 3521-5017

DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Co.,Ltd.
151/6-9, Moo 6, Lamtasao,
Wangnoi, Ayudhaya

Tel: +66 (0) 3521-5014-6

Fax: +66 (0) 3521-5017

SUMNRRROIT 8,000,000 35 27,997 2,799,700
szuvaeay
LAZIVSANKIAN

Telecommunications
and Transmission
Lines
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VSN Ineunsinuiund AawunsaARy 3719 "lﬁu%mi@uauaz 12,320,000 19 467,962 2,339,810

Latlﬁ 4 mﬂﬁ 6 ﬂ%%ﬁqthN’QJ‘Vl AR

. UTURI .97V

Insdwyi +66 (0) 3888-2490-2
nsans +66 (0) 3888-2493

Thai Maintenance Contracting Co.Ltd.
4 Sukhumvit Rd., Moo 6,

Banchang, Banchang, Rayong

Tel: +66 (0) 3888-2490-2

Fax: +66 (0) 3888-2493

1503N¥1
Tﬁ\muqmmwnﬁu
A ALY

Maintenance
Service for
Industrial Plants

usEn adld uaud $1im

4011 ¥ S vy 8 anmsiafld
nwvaluu f.ARR a.41gNM
nue 12130

nsFwYi +66 (0) 2992-5781
5815 +66 (0) 2992-5878
Abico Land Co.,Ltd.

401/1 Sth Fl, Moo 8,

Abico Tower, Phaholyothin Rd,
Lumlookka, Pathumthani 12130
Tel: +66 (0) 2992-5781

Fax: +66 (0) 2992-5878

Wauadum3nnsweg 200,000,000 15 300,000 30,000,000

Real Estate
Development
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The company ams to be excellence in on time delivery, high quality
projects with fair price and good records of safety awareness due
to Safety, Health and Environment policy.
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ANUOUMSUS:NOUBSSID

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited has been engaged in the
construction contracting business for more than 40 years and is considered to be the one of leaders
in the construction industry of Thailand. The company aims to be excellence in on time delivery, high
quality projects with fair price and good records of safety awareness due to Safety, Health and
Environment policy. The business ranges from medium to mega projects, where critical skills and high
technology are required, therefore the company will present the increased profitability ratio and

decreased costs of construction.

Our services can be classified into S categories as follows;

1. Infrastructure Construction Projects 3. Building Construction Projects

¢ Roads ¢ High-rise buildings

e Elevated roads e Office buildings

e Highways ¢ Condominium

e Bridges 4. Hydro & Thermal Electric Projects
2. Industrial Projects e Power transmission stations

e Oil refineries e Power plants

e Petrochemical plants 5. Environmental Projects

e |Industrial factories e Wastewater treatment plants

e Steel Structure e Water Supply System

e Underground cables installation
¢ Solid waste management plants

e |rrigation canals

w
w

ANNUAL REPORT 2007




Z%Jﬂiﬂ'mzﬂ’]%‘ﬂﬁ‘gﬂ@UQiﬁq

w
~

“O1d NOTLONYLSNOD % ONIYIINIONI IVHL-ONIS

anunu:gnAm
usEndianuanansalunmssunuaaseainnareUssiny. gnAnknadsvaeuTEnIeANEMaINRABLANGY
lumauszimem wasusEdaaaEnansalunssununasaslinnviogniimasy wassgiamie wazmaanm
anwoizzavgnAzasuIEnuuseanladiiu 2 naxlngl Ao ATIEMS (WAXSTIaNAR) uazmAenaw Tneddndiu
YOWN NIATIPNT : MAENEW T 2549 Usziios 66% : 34% ull 2550 Uszamh 70% : 30% Iull 2557
usEmAathmaneaaunAsIens SdRduuszanos 60% uaznALanauUSZaN0s 40%
andilumasiens wazsgiamia Iull 2551 vsdEnduailimnelumssurmdoashennnasgiidlasims
asnululasunisszuusalwihaudusnazueuialng bu nssoliunedszinalne ‘E'i\jLﬂu‘[ﬂﬁ\m%ﬂ\jﬁugmﬁwﬁaﬁﬂ:
savsumsiasuiulamuirsygissasusana Supainazdufatuaturadan uazmBemienusyiamia W ms
salwranausazuwisUszvelng Mslwindeadauiedszmelne Wusu
andilumaonaulud 2551 viEnduacsjoniniinzsunudaasielu
qiﬁa}ﬁtﬁmﬁ’a\jﬁuwﬁmm i Tsulwdawialnuazawiana iy Aaanan
gffiiAedauiugnamnssuiiugueanssme i Tsvomilasiad dod
ﬂ\iﬁmﬁﬂmuﬁaLﬁuﬁumuﬁmwmiﬂmﬂﬁmamﬂwgﬁﬂ

nauanAmIting

1. MUMATIENSLAzSTIamA Beusznaudie nsumnuvalsELUY
NTNAAUTEVH NTHVNNAIS NTINWHAIUAT UASIVAUIART 7 FINTTINS
salwunavszalne  nsmuitAswisUssvalneg  nssalWinanduniazne
wisuszimalne  nslidwasnas nsiwidendaunelssmalng nns
UszUIUATAIY

2. VIMIALANA® Usznaumie Tﬁ\muﬂ‘[mLﬂﬁua:qmmmnﬁuﬁ
\idavssludTsulniznialnaiuazanianay NaNU3EM Uan,
u%ﬁwLanﬂuﬁhwi:mﬂﬁﬁwqiﬁﬁ]LﬁUrTum'iriaa%\ﬂimﬂmﬂimmﬁ WAz
Tuluin Ousin

IhAINEMSAITUSSNO
usEnfiilmanusegmsiduuienimnssuuaziaaseduiizacussive
Ineuazgfinia fazdunaunanuliingnAluszAuansgIuang

nagnsmsligodu
1. vsinduleuvwassuyumssdnavinensananuianaralunsuaalaaliinsuilagunmioaiign aiia
AnennlnnsLaTun IR IATLAZNSYINlS



Business QOverview

Type of Clients

The Company has its capacity in various types of construction projects, clients are also various as
same as the types of the company’s construction projects. It is therefore; its capacity can be covered by
the clients both from the government sectors including state enterprise and the private sectors.

Our clients can be classified into 2 groups, which are public and private sectors. In 2006, the
category of projects ratio of public : private sectors was approximately 66% : 34% and in 2007, it show
approximately 70% : 30%. Moreover, there is a ratio forecast for the year of 2008 that the company may
have projects derived from public sectors approximately 60% and 40% derived from private sector.

In 2008, the company has its plan to have mass transit projects derived from government sectors
including state enterprise such as State Railway of Thailand and state enterprise like The Electricity
Generating Authority of Thailand as its clients. Mass transit projects represent the overall economic
growth in the country.

The clients from private sectors in 2008 will be related not
only to the energy construction business such as power plants, but
also the industrial projects such as petrochemicals. The energy and
petrochemicals are expanded in accordance with the economic

growth.

The Target Group of Clients
1. Public and State Enterprise Sectors consist of:
e Department of Rural Roads
e Royal Irrigation Department
e Department of Highways
e State Railway of Thailand
e Metropolitan Electricity Authority
e The Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand
e Metropolitan Waterworks Authority of Thailand
e Thai Mass Rapid Transit Authaority of Thailand
2. Private Sectors consist of:
¢ Petrochemical Plants

e Power Plants

¢ Industrial Plants

Performance Goals

The company is committed to be a first class contractor and a leader of engineering company in
Thailand and allover the region where its projects can be delivered to clients in accordance with the

international standards.

Competitive Strategy
1. The company intends to decrease costs of construction, thus employee shall process the
operation with more careful and accurate. To develop competitive ability and high profitability, the

company shall pay more attention to deliver qualified projects.

w
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Business QOverview

2. The company has always adhered to the construction of a qualified product with fair price and
on time delivery. Safety is its first priority in accordance with Safety, Health, and Environment
policy.

3. The company has carried out its business in compliance with quality policy in order to satisfy
clients.

4. The company still delivering general construction projects such as civil work, mechanical waork,
and electrical work, besides it has developed work in engineering section by training useful skills
and knowledge of construction. Therefore, the company has more skilled labor.

S. Construction business needs various kinds of skilled labor. At the present, some construction
companies have been changed their business such as moving towards Turnkey Project. Thus, the
company understands the needs of clients and has adapted its practice by training its staff
where they might get ready for various competition or changing type of bidding procedures. With
skilled staff, the company is able to reduce costs of construction and be prepared for the

construction projects, especially energy projects that derived from private sectors.

Outstanding Changes and Developments in 2007
Significant contract signing projects during 2007

h . : L
March ’|4t Project name:  The Construction of the Burapha Withi Expressway to the South of
Suvarnabhumi Airport Project
Project owner:  Expressway and Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand

h
July 27t Project name:  The Construction of the School Building at Prasarnmit Demonstration
School, Srinakharinwirot University (Primary School) Project
Project owner:  Srinakharinwirot University

August 31 s Project name:  The Construction of Water Supply System Project
Project owner:  Nakornratchasrima Municipal

The company is trusted by clients and also customers to construct infrastructure projects. Due to
corporate good governance in Annual General Meeting of Shareholders rating that arranged by Thai

Institute of Directors the company in corporate with Thai Investors Institute had been ranked in Very Good

level.

w
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In 2007, competitions in the construction industry were quite high due to limited quantity of
construction work in the market and slow-down of investment, both in the private sector and in the public
sector.

In the first 6 months of 2007, investment in the construction sector has increased by 2.2% when
compared to 4.8% of the same period of last year. Investment in the private sector has shrunk because of
slackness in the real estate market, which is a major source of construction work in the private sector. The
construction work in the real estate sector is growing within the group of condominiums along the sky train
lines, hotels, and resorts; meanwhile, the construction work in the industrial sector has slightly increased
because the private sector was not confident in Thailand’s economic condition and the export sector has still
been affected by the exchange rates, and the competitiveness of the private sector has decreased, resulting
in a slow-down of investment in the industrial sector, except that the investment of PTT Group has
continuously increased.

In early 2007, there was limited guantity of construction work in the public sector due to the delay of
spending in the fiscal year 2007, and the delay of investment projects in state enterprises such as the mass
rapid transit construction project of the Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand; however, the investment
budgets in the Central Government and the local administration organizations have increased since the
second quarter of the year; as a result, the investment in the construction sector tended to increase slightly.

Rates of investment expansion in the construction sector are as follows:

2006 40 23 5.9
1" Quarter 2007 0.4 -06 15
2" Quarter 2007 18 1.2 5.0
3" Quarter 2007 15 07 21

Source: Office of the National Economic and Social Development Board

The quantity of construction work has steeply decreased when compared to the last few years, resulting
in high competition in the construction industry, both in the private sector and in the public sector; and the
competitions are price-oriented.
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Industry and Competition

Status and Potential Competitiveness

Due to the slow-down of investment in the construction sector in 2007, the gquantity of new construction work of
the Company has decreased; and the competitions remained high among major and competitive construction
contractors; however, the Company was still able to maintain its status of competition and created good quality
performances, and has still been entrusted by customers both in the private sector and in the public sector; as a result,
the Company has still had its construction work continuously.

Trends of the Industry and Competition

In 2008, it is expected that the construction industry will continuously expend, both in the private sector and in
the public sector, subject to the new government formation and the effective spending of budgets in the public sectar,
S0 as to create the consumers’ confidence in their spending and to stimulate the economic recovery.

It is expected that the construction work in the public sector will be growing due to the convincing policies of the
newly-formed government regarding the economic stimulus through spending and investment, and creation of Thailand’s
competitiveness by means of developing mega infrastructure projects, which have long been delayed. It is also expected
that, in 2008, the quantity of construction work in the public sector will increase in the market; and projects to be
launched in 2008 include Double Track Railway Project, Red Line and Purple Line Mass Rapid Transit Project, investment
projects in natural gas and petrochemical business of PTT Group; and power plant construction project of EGAT.

The quantity of construction work in the private sector depends on the confidence in the government’'s economic
stimulus policy; however, it is estimated that, in 2008, the world economy will slow down and will affect the export
sector and foreign investment; as a result, the investment in the private sector will grow slowly; and projects to be
launched in 2008 include small and large power plant projects (PP and SPP), and petrochemical factory, production
capacity expansion project of the industrial sector, as well as real estate projects such as condominiums, hotels, resorts,
etc.

It is expected that the construction work in foreign countries will be growing continuously due to strong demands
for infrastructural development, particularly in developing countries in Asia such as land transportation network project,

power plants, dams, and construction work in Middle-East countries remains growing continuously; therefore, it is a good
opportunity for potential construction contractors to expand their markets and new customer bases.

Regarding the trends of construction materials prices, particularly the steel products, it is expected that the prices
will continue to increase and fluctuate because there are still demands in the world market (in China and India); as a
result, the raw materials prices will continue to increase. For other construction materials, it is expected that the prices
will increase in accordance with the increases of oil prices; meanwhile, under the currency fluctuation situation and the
appreciation condition of Thai Baht, it will be more difficult for business operators to estimate the cost of the imported
construction materials.

Potential factors affecting opportunities or limitations in business operations:

Factors affecting opportunities in business operations:

e Thai economic recovery (since the political situation in Thailand will be clearly improved after the general election
and it is expected that the new Government will launch its economic and investment stimulus policies and will
push for implementation of mega projects in the public sector such as mass rapid transit project;

e (Continuous expansion of investment of PTT Group;

e Investment in the private sector, which is expected to recover according to the overall economic condition;

e [ecreasing interest rates, which will urge the overall economy;

e Expansion of construction work in Middle-East countries such as U.A.E. and Qatar; South-Asian countries such as
India; and South-East Asian countries such as Vietnam and Laos PDR, etc.

Factors affecting limitations in business operations:

e |ncreasing oil prices, which will affect the cost of construction materials;

e Increasing prices of steel bars, which are subject to prices of raw materials in the world market;

e Appreciation of Thai Baht against US Dollars; as a result, construction contractors who must import construction
materials and have their incomes in foreign currencies, will suffer losses from exchange rates;

e Regressive economy of the United States, which will affect the economic expansion rates of related countries,
including the export sector of Thailand;

e Free trades in the service sectaor, including the construction business, in the future, will increase the competition
opportunities for construction contractors and related professionals from foreign countries;

e Efficiency and stability of policy implementation of the newly-elected Government, since the Coalition Government
will have the delayed decisions on mega projects in the public sector;
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The Company’s first priority is safety awareness as well as qualified achievements. As a matter of
fact of the construction business, we all acknowledged that high risk always show up according to the
construction procedures. Employees have to work in a hazardous area where the critical and huge
machines are in processed; moreover, the construction area is close to the community, therefore safety
and environmental awareness policy ought to be strongly urged by the company. Then employees shall

keep in mind that safety is an essential part of a successful construction project. Safety and

Environmental Awareness policy is defined on behalf of the company and acknowledged to the employees

as follows:

Safety Policy:

The Company has set forth safety policy on all staffs as follows:

e The Company assumes its social responsibility to provide safety, health, environment, as well as
environmental protection, and to prevent the environmental impacts.

e The Company shall provide safety, health, and environment management system, which is in
accordance with the regulations or not being lower than the criteria prescribed by law;

e The Company has prescribed its policy that the Executives and all Superiors shall be obliged to
supervise the safety, health, and environment of their subordinates strictly in accordance with the
prescribed rules and regulations of the Company; and that the management at all levels shall be given
with full independence to take any action to achieve the desired result;

e The Company has prescribed its policy that all employees shall have their duties and responsibilities to
perform their work with the required safety, health, and environment strictly in accordance with the

prescribed rules and regulations of the Company;
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Safety and Environmental Concern

e The Company shall support and provide tools, instruments, and equipment in a safe condition and shall
provide safety equipment to all operational staff as well as safe working environment and procedures;
and shall disseminate knowledge to the operational staff and shall motivate all employees to perform
their work with safety and with the awareness of the environmental impacts;

e The Company has prescribed its policy that the Safety, Health, and Environment Committee shall be
established to make plans and projects relating to safety and to manage and develop work plans and

projects to effectively achieve the desired result;

Solutions on the environmental impact and the primary
environmental quality check during the course of
construction:

Air quality;

e Sweeping and cleaning the construction area to prevent dust

from construction as well as placing various tools and
equipments in order.
e Spraying the areas which may spread the dust with water; such
as, the area where the ground surface is dug opened or drilled.
e Safety nets must be used to curtain off the construction area
from the adjoining neighboring community. The nets must be
thick enough to strain the dust derived from the construction under the acceptable gquantity.

e Inspecting engines and machineries for the construction areas in order to prevent the releasing of soot

and dust and cleaning vehicles, specifically, the areas underneath the body and the wheels when they
have to be moved from the construction areas.

e The Company will provide construction signs for the purpose of versatility and safety of the traffic
regarding to traffic management.

e (Check and maintenance of the public traffic routes in the originally good or better condition as well as
strictly compiling with the Transport Rules.

e Prescribing a speed limitation of trucks operated in the construction areas not to exceed 40

kilometers per hour.

Noises;

e Fixing the time for driving in the pilings not to be correspondingly coincided with the bed time of the
people, particularly, the construction area located near the community and schools during the day time.

e Using engines or machineries that have regular maintenances to prevent excessive noise.

e Using block fence line to prevent noises in the case when machineries are near to the community.
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Safety and Environmental Concern

Adjoining Community:

e Having company representative(s) to participate in every Village
Committee or Tambon Administration Council (Or.Bor.Tor) to
listen to the explanation or their opinions and do it as
discussed (if possible).

e FErecting bulletin board to post the announcements on the
details of names and contacting places for receiving
complaints and recommendations as well as the reports on
the follow up of environmental condition and traffic accidents.

e Providing reasonable assistance to the community accordance
with the company policy by giving educational scholarships and
schools supplies and constructing school and library buildings

for various schools indeed located near the job site.

e In case of a mass conflict:
» Inform related government sections to compromise.
» Advance payment for the damage that can be reimbursed
from project owner in case it is not the contractor’s false.
» Follow up the summary reports on every week until the
cases finished.

» Make the monthly report for situations summarizing

The company strictly operates the executions in compliance
with the solutions on the environmental impact and the primary
environmental quality check during the course of construction just
to lessen environmental impact as much as it could.

In 2007, the company held 2 exhibitions on health, safety,
and environmental conditions at Ratchaburi Combined Cycle Power
Plant jobsite and South Bangkok Combined Cycle Power Plant
jobsite. The main purpose of these activities is to encourage the
fundamental of health, safety, and environment to employees, to
create the sense of safety performance for having good reputation
for its site and the company. Furthermore, the company had
arranged the campaign due to drugs resistance and drugs
prevention such as check the amphetamine in employees
randomly. The company continues to urge their employees to
concern about health, safety, and environment, thus it held “Safety
Award” activities for jobsites that present good record of safety
awareness and have no facility accidents in order to persuade

their employees to participate in safety activities.
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The company has a policy called “Sino-Thai Payback Program” which aims for retuning benefits to the society
and focuses on youth education and development, which are considered the principle factors in the development of
the country. The company has commenced this program since 2002 in commemorative celebration of the
company’s 40 years anniversary by donating school buildings, libraries, multi-purpose buildings, scholarships and
school supplies to various schools indeed and communities near by job sites as a continuous practice in every year.

In 2007, the company had a policy to construct school buildings, libraries, multi-purpose buildings, computer
center, to donate scholarships and sports supplies to the 3 following schools and community:

e Bang Klar Pittayakom School, Chachoengsao province — Charnvirakuls’ Building 23rd was dedicated as
a computer center building.

e Tumbol Klong —pia Schoal, Songkla Province - Charnvirakuls’ Building 24th was dedicated as a mosque.

e Wat Amparatueng anusorn School, Burirum province -Charnvirakuls’ Building 25th was dedicated as a library.

Moreover, The company donated computers to the 3 following schoaols;

e Wat Trisamaki School, Samutprakarn province

e Baan Po-Chai School, Kon-Kaen province

e Baan Nong ya sai School, U-dorn Thani province
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1. Risk associated with Personnel Resources Shortage

The Company has its experienced and specialized personnel who are significant resources such as
project manager or project engineer, responsible for supervision and management of construction projects
until completion. Therefore, the Company has its risk to the shortage of the said personnel, particularly the
expert and experienced engineers that the Company has employed and well trained as its permanent
employees to be adequate to the existing quantity of its construction work, the Company, therefore, has
its measures to reduce the risk of personnel loss by motivating these personnel to work for the Company
on a long-term basis and promoting their career advancement and giving all employees with proper

remuneration and welfare.

2. Risk associated with Fluctuation of Construction Materials Prices

Fluctuation of construction materials prices will have a direct impact on the construction cost and
the operating result of the Company, in case, the construction materials prices are subsequently adjusted,
and the Company may be unable to control the cost in accordance with the given budget; therefore, it will
affect the overall operating result of the Company. The Company has realized the said risk and has closely
followed up the price movements of crucial construction materials; fortunately, the Company has its good
relationship with suppliers and has smoothly negotiated regarding the price fluctuation. In case,
the Company will handle new construction projects, it will reduce the said risk by estimating the use of
construction materials and prices in advance so as to make plans and to maintain the proper level of
cost; and the value of its new construction projects must be in conformity with the adjusted prices of

construction materials.

3. Risk associated with Financial Liquidity

In the construction business, adequate working capital is required for the purposes of procurement of
raw materials and wage payments. In case, the liquidity management is not good enough, the Company
may not be able to handle new construction projects or carry out the existing construction project until
completion; however, the Company has realized the said risk and has, therefore, determined its policy for
careful management of the liquidity. Before the Company will handle any construction project, an advance
payment must be received. Despite critical situations, the Company still has financial resources to support

its business operations, with proper cost.
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4. Risk associated with Unbilled Receivables

Although the company completes many projects or delivers work progress on schedule, in some cases it
cannot issue invoice or collect money as stated in the contract due to the delayed work certification from the
main contractor and/or the project owner. Consequently, the company cooperates with the main contractor and/

or the project owner early on to decrease these risks.

5. Risk associated with Joint Venture

To increase the potential of winning high value projects, the company will enter into the joint venture
agreement with appropriate partner(s). With this strategy, the company will be able to reduce financial and
project execution risks tremendously. However, the concern will be whether these partners can actually deliver
what are promised under the contract. To weaken this risk, the company will deliberately analyze partners’ profile

including their reputation before making any decision to join together.

6. Risk associated with The Overdue Projects

Maost of the infrastructure projects derived from public sector, or mega projects. To operate infrastructure
projects, the company has to beware of all incidents that might harm to surrounded group of people. Moreover, if
there is any project disturbs some group of people, they may protest such project. Therefore, there should be
many steps and operations for these projects resulting the overdue projects. The company tries to prevent this

risk by carefully making contract to decrease delayed delivery projects.

7. Risk associated with Fluctuation of Exchange Rates

In some construction projects, the Company may have to import construction materials and equipment in
foreign currencies; and the fluctuation of exchange rates may affect the cost and profit of the Company;
therefore, the Company has reduced the risk of fluctuation of exchange rates by means of financial management

such as purchasing through domestic suppliers or hedging with financial instruments, as may be necessary.

8. Risk associated with Changes of Government Policies

Uncertainties and changes of internal affairs and political climate may sometimes affect the polices of
national administration and development, particularly the paolicies relating to infrastructural construction,
communication, and transportation projects, which may be changed and subject to policies of political parties;
however, the Company has tried to reduce the fluctuation from potential risks of the said cases by means of
management of its income structure and adjustment of proportion of its construction projects both in

the private sector and in the public sector.
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The company’s management structure can be divided into 4 levels as follows:
1. The Board of Directors
2. The Audit Committee
3. The Executive Committee

4. The President

1. The Board of Directors

There are 12 directors in the Board of Directors:

S el e
1. Mrs. Tassanee Charnvirakul Chairman of The Board
2. Mr. Chavarat Charnvirakul Director*

3. Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director
4. Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director
5. Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director
6. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director
7. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director
8. Palice Lieutenant General Jate Mongkulhutthi Independent Director
9. Dr. Chaiyaphon Horrungruang Independent Director*™
10. Palice General Sanong Wattanavrangkul Director
11. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director
12. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director
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Management Structure

* Note : Mr.Chavarat Charnvirakul resigned from the company as an Chairman of the Board and submitted the
resignation letter to the company on January 31 St, 2008, effective from January 31 St, 2008. According to his
responsibilities to another position; it is therefore, he will not be able to perform on the Chairman of the Board
properly.

** Note : Dr.Chaiyaphon Horrungruang resigned from the company as an Independent Director and as a Member of
Audit Committee and submitted the resignation letter to the company on December 4th, 2007, effective from
December Sth, 2007. According to his responsibilities to another position; it is therefore, he will not be able to
perform as the Independent Director and as the Member of Audit Committee properly.

Note : Dr.Chira Hongladarom resigned from the company as an Advisor to the Board and submitted the resignation
letter to the company on March 29th, 2007, effective from April 2nd, 2007. According to his responsibilities to

another paosition; it is therefore, he will not be able to perform as the Advisor to the Board properly.

The Company Secretary

Mr.Chaiyaporn Imcharoenkul

Authorized Directors
Mrs. Tassanee Charnvirakul, Chairman of the Board or Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien, the President has
been authorized to sign and seal with the company’s seal, or Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul, Mr. Waoraphant

Chontong, Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul 2 of 3 Directors have been authorized to sign and seal with the

company’s seal.

The Authorities and Duties of the Board of Directors
e To perform their duties by utilizing their knowledge, skills, and experiences in order to benefit the
company’s business operation. Their duties must be in compliance with the company’s objectives,
regulations, the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.2335, Securities and Exchange Commission
B.E2535 and the resolutions of the annual general meeting of shareholders. Furthermore, the Board of

Directors shall manage the company’s business in the best interest of the company and its

shareholders;

e To consider and approve the company’s policies, operation strategy, operation plans and waorking
capital of its business proposed by the management;

e To supervise the management to effectively conduct the business under the company’s policies
and request the management to report the issues that have significant effects to the company’s
operation. The Board of Directors shall assure that all related parties’ transactions are conducted
in accordance with the regulations of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand. In case of necessity, the Board of Directors will require the
management to hire advisors in order to give opinion for the management’s decision in specialized
issues which have significant effects on the company’s operation;

e To supervise the company to set up effective internal control system and Internal Audit. Internal
Audit manager shall report directly to the Audit Committee; and

e Independent Directors shall independently consider company’s matters related to strategies,
management, appointing directors and issues that have significant effects to the Company for the
benefit of the shareholders and shall have an access to adequate financial and business

information to perform their duties.
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Management Structure

Composite part and appointment of the Board of Directors

According to the Company’s Article of Association, the Board of Directors shall consist of not less than five
directors and the number of directors shall not less than a half of the total number of such directors must have the
resident in Thailand. The annual general meeting of shareholders shall approve the number of Directors.

The company has no Selective Committee to appoint the Directors. Meanwhile, the selection of Directors shall
be made by selecting a person who has proper qualified to perform duties of the Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors shall nominate such qualified person and propose to the annual general meeting of shareholders to
consider the appointment by a resolution. To vote individual director, the company does not use the cumulative
voting but using one share one vote for each proposal. The nominees whose votes are chronological order ranging
from the top to the last shall be elected as a Director.

In the annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third of the directors shall retire from their positions. If their
number is not a multiple of three, then use the nearest number to one-third shall retire from office and the retiring
directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Should there be a casual vacancy occurring among the directors besides the retirement, the Board of Directors
shall select a person to replace such vacancy and he/she shall retain his/her position as long as the vacating
director would have retained the same lawfully had no vacancy occurred.

If there is an agenda considering the Directors’ election, all votes will be individual for each Director.

The number of Directors’ attendance shall constitute the quorum for every meeting of the Board of Directors,

which more than a half of the total number of Directors at that time.
The proportion of the Board of Directors can be classified as follows:

1. Directors from Charnvirakuls’ Family 4 people
2. Independent Directors 6 people
3. Executive Directors 2 people

Total 12 people

Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors’ meeting no. 5/2004, the Board of Directors resolved the
approval of the appointment of Mr. Vallop Rungkijvarasathien to hold the position of President and the resolution
was passed to make changes on the names and number of authorized directors on behalf of the company in

compliance with such appointment as follows: “Mrs. Tassanee Charnvirakul, Chairman of the Board or Mr. Vallop
Rungkijvorasathien, the President has been authorized to sign and seal with the company’s seal, or Mr. Masthawin
Charnvirakul, Mr. Woraphant Chontong, Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul 2 of 3 Directors have been authorized to sign
and seal with the company’s seal.” The company had change the name of the President at the Commercial
Department, Ministry of Commerce on December ’I7th, 2004.

2. The Audit Committee

Audit Committee and appointed three independent directors, as a result, the followings 3 independent directors
who are qualified under the rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, to be members of the audit
committee to have authorities and duties to perform the followings:

1. Mr. Chamni Janchai Chairman
2. Pol.Lt.Gen.Jate Mongkulhutthi Member
3. Dr. Chaiyaphon Horrungruang Member*

* Note : Dr. Chaiyaphon Horrungruang resigned from the company as an Independent Director and as a Member
of Audit Committee and submitted the resignation letter to the company on December 4th, 2007, effective from
December Sth, 2007. The company had already submitted the Director's resignation letter to the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and disseminated to the public.
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Management Structure

e To ensure that the company’s financial reports are sufficient, credible, and prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards;

e To ensure that the company has an appropriate and effective internal control;

e To select and nominate the company’s auditor and determine the annual audit fee;

e To ensure that the company’s compliance to the requirements and related law;

e To prevent the conflict of interests;

e To prepare the report on the corporate governance of the audit committee for disclosure in the company’s
annual report;

e To approve the appointment, removal, relocation, or termination of the Internal Audit Manager;

e To approve the budget and the manpower of the internal audit section.

e To consider the internal control system, work plan, and audit guideline including evaluation of the audit
result of the company’s operations according to the generally accepted procedures and standards;

e To perform any act required by law or assigned by the company’s Board of Directors and under the scope of
authority and duty. The audit committee shall have the power to call the executives to give opinions, to
attend meetings, or to deliver relevant and necessary documents.

The resolution of the company Board of Directors meeting has stipulated the term in being a member of the
audit committee whereby the audit committee shall have a term of the same status of being a directors of the
company’s Board.

Details on the meeting attendance of each Directors of the Board of Directors

Mrs. Tassanee Charnvirakul Chairman of the Board Attend 4a/4 -
Mr. Chavarat Charnvirakul Director Absent 3/4 -
Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director Attend 4/4 -
Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director Absent 4/4 -
Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director Absent 3/4 -
Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director Attend 4/4 -
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director and Attend 4a/4 6/6
Chairman of the
Audit Committee
Pol.Lt.Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi Independent Director and Absent 4/4 6/6
Member of the
Audit Committee
Dr. Chaiyapol Horrungruang Independent Director and Absent 4/4 6/6
Member of the
Audit Committee
Pol.Gen. Sanong Wattanavrangkul Director Absent 4/4 -
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvarasathien Director Attend 4/4 -
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director Attend a/4 6/6
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Management Structure

Details on shares holding of each Director

Mrs. Tassanee Charnvirakul Chairman of the Board - -
Mr. Chvarat Charnvirakul Director - -
Mrs.Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director 189,845,280 16.03
Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director 19,800,000 1.95
Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director - -
Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director 10,000 0.001
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director and - -

Chairman of the
Audit Committee

Pol.Lt.Gen.Jate Mongkulhutthi Independent Director and 10,000 0.001
Member of the

Audit Committee

Dr. Chaiyapol Horrungruang Independent Director and - -
Member of the
Audit Committee

Pol.Gen.Sanong Wattanavrangkul Director - -
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director - -
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director - -

3. The Executive Committee

According to the company’s notification no. Sor. Tor.-Kor. Sor. 20/2007 dated on November 29, 2007, it is
expedient to newly improve the organization chart in order that the company management can be carried out in an
orderly and suitable and coped with the growth of the company which, as a consequence, resulted in the
appointment of the Executive Committee regarding to the Announcement no. Sor. Tor.-Kor. Sor. 22/2007 dated on

d
December 3' , 2007. Therefore the Executive Committee consists of 7 people as the followings:

1. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Chairman of the Executive Committee
2. Mr. Woaraphant Chontong Executive Committee
3. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Executive Committee
4. Mr. Varatt Kusolmanomai Executive Committee
2. Mr. Chanchai Thanrakprasert Executive Committee
B. Mr. Prasert Kongkaoroptham Executive Committee
7. Mr. Teerapong Vichiranon Executive Committee
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Management Structure

Authorities and Duties of The Executive Committee
e To plan, set up regulations, and manage the company according to the Board of Directors’ paolicies;
e To operate the company’s business according to the policies approved by the Board of Directors; and
e To monitor the performance of all company’s departments by arranging the Executive Committee meeting
at least 1-2 times a month, setting the executive committee secretary to record the minute of meeting,

and proposing the minute of meeting to the Board of Directors meeting.

4. The President
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien is the President.

Authorities and Duties of the President

The authorities and duties of the President were defined in Board of Directors meeting no. 3/2002 on May 10,
2002, which resolved that the President shall be responsible for conducting and supervising the company’s business
operations in accordance with the policy approved by the Board of Directors. He shall have a power to appoint other
person(s) to act on his behalf to manage and conduct company’s business. The exception is when such actions are
required by the laws, rules and regulations of the governing agencies to get approval from Board of Directors’

meeting of Shareholders’ meeting. President and his attorney/proxy or any person who has conflicts of interests with

the company and its subsidiary.

5. The Executives

The lists are shown as stated in the item “The Executive Committee”.

6. The Company Secretary

Mr.Chaiyaporn Imcharoenkul

7. The Auditor
Ernst & Young Office Limited
e (Other relationship towards the company: None

e Number of years of being the Auditor for the company: 7 years

8. Independent Director

The list of Independent Directors is as follows:

1. PolLt.Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi Independent Director
2. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director
3. Dr. Chaiyaphon Horrungruang* Independent Director
4. Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director
3. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director

* Note : Dr. Chaiyaphon Horrungruang resigned from the company as an Independent Director and as a Member of
Audit Committee and submitted the resignation letter to the company on December 4th, 2007, effective from
December Sth, 2007. The company had already submitted the Director’s resignation letter to the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and disseminated to the public.
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Management Structure

The Definition of Independent Director

e Holding shares not more than S percent of paid-up capital of the company, affiliated company, associated
company or related company, which shall be inclusive of the shares held by related persons.

e Being a director who does not take part in the management of the company, affiliated company, associated
company, related company or majority shareholder of the company. Not being an employee, staff member or
advisor who receives a regular salary from the company, affiliated company, associated company, related
company or majority shareholder of the company; for example, the Chief Executive Officer of the company
may not be a member of the Audit Committee because he is directly responsible for the management etc.

e Being a director who has no direct or indirect benefit or interest in finance and management of the
company, affiliated company, associated company or majority shareholder of the company. Being a director
who has no benefit or interest of the said nature during the period of 1 year before his appointment as a
member of the Audit Committee except where the Board of Directors has carefully considered that such
previous benefit or interest does not affect the performance of duties and the giving of independent
opinions.

e Being a director who is not a related person or close relative of any management member or majority
shareholder of the company.

e Being a director whom is not appointed as a representative to safeguard interests of the company’s
directors, majority shareholders or shareholders who are related to the company’s majority shareholders.

e Being capable of performing duties, giving opinions or reporting the results of performance of work according
to the duties delegated by the Board of Directors free and clear of the control of the management or the
majority shareholders of the company including related persons or close relatives of the said persons.

The remuneration of the Directors and the Executives

Money Remuneration;

e Aggregated remuneration for 12 directors in 2007
- The amount of Baht 4,300,000 was the meeting allowance and remuneration

e Aggregated remuneration for 8 executive directors and executive managers in 2007
- The amount of Baht 23,625,000 was the salary and bonus

Other Remuneration;
e None
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Management Structure

Details on Money remuneration for each Director in 2007

Unit : Baht
Mrs. Tassanee Charnvirakul Chairman of the Board 160,000 - 400,000 560,000
Mr. Chavarat Charnvirakul Director 80,000 - 200,000 280,000
Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director 80,000 - 200,000 280,000
Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director 80,000 - 200,000 280,000
Dr. Chumpal Phornprapa Independent Director 60,000 - 200,000 260,000
Mr.Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director 80,000 - 200,000 280,000
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director and 80,000 240,000 400,000 720,000
Chairman of the
Audit Committee
Pol. Lt. Gen. Jate Independent Director and 80,000 120,000 200,000 400,000
Mongkulhutthi Member of the
Audit Committee
Dr. Chaiyaphon Horrungruang Independent Director and 80,000 120,000 200,000 400,000
Member of the
Audit Committee
Pol. Gen. Sanong Director 80,000 - 200,000 280,000
Wattanavrangkul
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director 80,000 - 200,000 280,000
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director 80,000 - 200,000 280,000
Total 1,020,000 480,000 2,800,000 4,300,000
Money Remuneration of Subsidiary;
Aggregated remuneration for 3 Directors of the company’'s subsidiary in 2007
e The amount of Baht 35,000 was the meeting allowance
Details on Money Remuneration for Directors of the Company’s Subsidiary in 2007
Unit : Baht

Mr. Chavarat Charnvirakul Director 20,000
Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director 5,000
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director 10,000

Total 35,000

Notice: the subsidiary is HTR Company Limited where the company holds 80.90% of its shares.
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Management Structure

Employee

Employee Structure

2007

Administrative Employees 296 288 279
Operation Employees 682 604 541
Executives 34 32 37
Permanent Employees 18 34 34

Total 1,030 858 891

The company concerns about human resources management, therefore, it has its plans to manage human
resources every year. The growth of construction business still obviously expanding, and so does the amount of
human resources of the company. According to the expansion in construction business, the employees from the
operation department are increasing gradually. In 2007, the increasing of employees from operation department
presented 12.91 percent; meanwhile, the increasing of employees from management department presented 2.78

percent from the previous year.

Employees’ aggregated returns

2007

Salary 310,462,487 278,470,137 235,789,166
Bonus 34,186,657 20,617,190 50,673,642
Provident fund 11,854,623 9,492,094 5,689,438

Total 356,513,767 308,579,421 282,152,246

A change in the number of employees with significant implication or labor dispute (during the past 3 years)

During the past 3 years there was neither a change in the number of the company employees with significant

implication nor labor dispute.

Human Resources Management Policy
The company realizes on human resource management by treating all employees with fair and equity under the
company’s rules and regulations, labor law, and morality of the society. The company also pays attention on their

work to ensure that they are safe, including their working ability. Then they can do their work more efficiently.

Personnel Planning
Each year, the company shall estimate on the required guantity of employees for supporting the current
projects and other projects that might occur in the future. The main purpose is to obtain the qualified and potential

person in the appropriate time.
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Management Structure

Personnel Recruitment and Selection

Recruiting a knowledgeable, capable, and qualified person to join with the company is the goal of personnel
recruitment. The company has various channels of recruiting such as newspapers, Internet, and government
organization like Department of Employment, Department of Manpower and Human Resources Booth arranged by the
University.

The company will consider the gualifications of an employee by relevant with its responsibilities and duties. Not
only keen knowledge and skills in working but also the company extremely supports creative working and giving

knowledge on teamwork also.

Performance Evaluation and Remuneration Management

Performance evaluation system is compliance with remuneration management. The remuneration of each
employee is accordance with the performance evaluation and overall company’s performance.

The company is aware of the returns of work performances and provides welfare for employees with

transparency, equity, and in accordance with the situation of competitiveness and labor market.

Learning and Personnel Development Palicy

Goal of learning and personnel development policy is to give a priority to develop its personnel in the field
correspondingly with the actual work. Then they can gain knowledge, competency, skills, and proficiency capable to
perform efficient duties in compliance with the company’s policy. Personnel development shall concentrate on 3
dimensions as follows:

Individual and Group Training & Development

Individual and Group Training & Development put the emphasis on competency, personnel skill, and new
technology that increase the capabilities on jobs. Each position shall have the training & development plan. This is
the cooperation between human resources department, the preliminary section, and the employees.

For group training development, the company sets an in-house training every year for both operations and
administrations. In 2007, training programs mostly related to efficient working, which were construction
management, English for engineer, etc. Furthermore, there will be another useful program for project in the future

call, Mini-MBA incooperation with Thammasart University.

Expenses on Seminar and Training for Year 2005 -2007

2007

External Seminar and Training 520,945 480,110 388,132
In-house Seminar and Training 2,872,127 1,013,235 592,738
Total 3,393,072 1,493,345 980,890

Career Path
The company has made career plan for each type of work as a guideline in personnel development. Employees

shall be advanced by proper skills and knowledge in concordance with their job titles in the future.

Organization Development

In order to keep steady growth, firm, and ability in long-term competition, and arising of capability on overall
execution, the company has its policy on organization development in both operations and administrations.

The company aims on improving the organization into learning organization to create the excellent operations
and build up core value of unending knowledge by transfer knowledge to each other. The company supports these
ideas by arranging the library and the Internet for employees to search and surf then gain and share more useful
information from job sites to head office. In addition, the company had developed Intranet and motivated employees
to often use the Intranet as a channel of exchanging knowledge between internal departments and job sites, where

its feedbacks appreciated the administrators as well.
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Corporate
Govemance

MSMNUNIANDMS

Rights of Shareholders and Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
The company has foreseen the importance of rights and equal treatments for all shareholders and to comply with the
Principle of Good Corporate Governance. It has henceforward specified various guidelines rely on the rights and equitable

treatment for shareholders and stakeholders as follows:

1. Shareholders’ Meeting

The notice of shareholders’ meeting had been sent to all of shareholders. Details of the notice of shareholders’ meeting

are as follows:

e [Date and time, place of holding the meeting, and map is clearly stated. The place of meeting is convenient far
shareholders.

e All needed documents for the meetings are stated.

e Agendas are clearly stated. The company shall prepare accurately and adequately all data, document, and details of
each agenda. Fact, reason and the Board’s opinion are stated in every agenda in order to clearly inform details of
each agenda to shareholders.

e The company shall freely take all gquestions and opinions from shareholders along with answer their guestions.

e The company shall prepare sufficient proxy forms for shareholders who cannot join the meeting by themselves. Such
proxies shall state 1 Member of Audit Committee to attend and vote on behalf of the absent shareholders and it
should also state how to give a vote to each agenda in details.

e The Notice of the shareholders’ meeting will be prepared in both Thai and English language for Thai and Foreigner
shareholders.

e The Notice of shareholders’ meeting and related documents will be sent to shareholders at least 14 days in
advance, furthermore, it can be downloaded via company’s website www.stecon.co.th to comfort shareholders.

e The company is concerned to inform shareholders about the information for shareholders’ meeting. To the rights
and equitable treatment, the company posted the notice of shareholders’ meeting in details, facts and reasons of
each agenda, and the beneficial information according to the meeting on the company’s website www.stecon.co.th
over 30 days before the meeting date. Thus, both local shareholders and foreign shareholders can equally reach the

information and be prepared for the meeting.

Shareholders are able to register at the registration more than 1 hour in advance before the meeting start. The
Chairperson shall declare on procedures of voting and votes counting prior to the casting of such votes and require a simple
majority approval vote of the shareholders voting. The Chairperson shall allocate adequate and proper time for this purpose
and enhance the expressing of opinions and making inquiries on the meeting over the meeting agendas and matters in
motion by shareholders on an equal basis. In addition, the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Directors, and the President shall always attend the meeting to give explanations and answer questions of the meeting,
moreaover, the company shall not add further agenda without announcing to shareholders in advance. If there is a

consideration of the appointment of Directors, the company shall set all votes into individual for each Director.
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Corporate Governance

The company prepares minute of meeting by entering all the material details of such meeting in details whether they
will be material explanations, questions, opinions vote counting procedures, approved/disapproved votes or voting abstention.
The minute of shareholders’ meeting shall finish within 7 days after the meeting was over. Then the company shall send it
to Stock Exchange of Thailand and post it in the company’s website. The Company has a good filing system on the minutes

of shareholders’ meeting where such minutes can be verified and used as reference.

2. Agenda proposition and nomination of directors

In order to comply with the good corporate governance principles and to indicate the fair and equitable treatment to
all shareholders, the Company has prescribed the criteria of agenda proposal and directors nomination. The details of both
criteria; qualifications of shareholders to propose agenda in advance or to nominate the directors, agenda proposal,
consideration procedures, the matters not to be included as an agenda, qualifications of the company’s directors, and the

company notification, are available on the company’s website www.stecon.co.th.

3. Internal Information Disclosure and Usage Policy

The company has its obvious policy in accordance with the internal information disclosure and usage policy. To prevent
the conflict of interests by pirating information that had been disclosed or brought for disclosure or used for own benefit, the
company has come up with the rules to prevent the usage of internal data for personal benefits for the Board of Directaors,
Executives and employees. Whereas the regulations of the company had clearly stated and defined about the Internal
Information that “Internal Information” shall cover the information on finance, investment, marketing, operations, and any other
information related with the Company according to the Regulations and/or as prescribed by law, thus, to maintain the

investments from shareholders, and assets of the Company. In case, the Executives, even any staff or employee is in breach

of these Regulations, he/she shall be punished in accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the Company and shall
receive the punishment as prescribed by the related law, in all respects. The principles are as follows:

e The Company has acknowledged the Board of Directors and the Executives as well as their spouses and child or
children under legal age to be aware of their duties that they have the duties to submit reports on the securities
holding of the Company in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission Notification No. Sor. Jor.
14/2540., Re: Preparation and Disclosure of Reports on Securities Holding of directors, Executives and auditor of the
company which shall be strictly complied with.

e Restricting the number of persons to know of financial information specifically to related Executives.

e The Executives or staffs who know of internal information shall not be allowed to disclose such internal information

to the third person or unrelated people nor shall they sell securities of the company within one month prior to the
dissemination of financial statements to the public.

e The company has a regulation on inflicting punishment against the Executives and employees bringing forth internal
information for dissemination or use for their own interests.

e The company has adapted information technology system to prevent access to company’s information and
stipulated the rights of access to the company’s information in various levels suitably in accordance with the
responsibilities of the Executives and staffs on an individual basis. The company had an information technology
policy that has been used since 2006. To define an obvious rules in using the computers and information
technology in the company, and to emphasize more secured utilities such as preventing all problems in using the
information net system occurred by misuse the information technology, information technology control systems,

regulations and punishments for hackers etc.

4, Disclosure the beneficial information of Directors, Executives, and related people to the Board of Directors
According to the Listed Company Act B.C. 2535 and the announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the

Securities and Exchange Commission, the Board of Directors defined best practices for Directors and Executives to disclose

their own beneficial information and so do related people to the Board of Directors in order to operate or make the best

decision of the company.
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Corporate Governance

3. Conflict of interest policy

To prevent conflict of interests and to operate business with transparency and be able to verify. The Board of Directors
shall not support Directors, the Executives, and employees of the Company to make any connected transaction, which may
lead to any conflict of interests; however, in case, any connected transaction occur, they must be duly considered by the
Board of Directors; and the criteria, conditions, and procedures set forth under the Stock Exchange of Thailand Notification,

RE: Disclosure and Other Acts of Listed Companies Concerning the Connected Transactions, 2003 shall be strictly complied.

Role of Stakeholders

1. Stakeholders: Best Practices for Stakeholders Policy

The Company has its clear policy on rights of stakeholders; and has clearly established best practices for stakeholders,
whether they will be clients, affiliates, government organizations, employees, society, business partners, and creditors. The
Company prescribed that it shall be duties and responsibilities of Directors, the Executives, and all employees to know and

adhere to the guidelines strictly.

Best Practices for Clients:

1. Shall sell goods and services at fair price.

2. Shall sell goods and services properly in accordance with the quantity, quality, and price as agreed upon and be
responsible for its own commitment.

Shall take good care and provide services to all clients equally.

Shall omit to perform any acts to control the decisions of the clients.

Shall omit to perform any acts of attempt to increase goods price unreasonably.

o U s W

Shall treat clients and provide them with generous services, friendly and good spirit to one another.

Best Practices for Affiliates:
1. Shall omit an act of persecution to cause rivals to lose opportunity unfairly.

2. Shall provide coordination in competitiveness.

Best Practices for Government Organizations:
Shall transact business with government organizations straightforwardly, honestly and righteously.

Shall abide by the rules of laws in business transactions.

Shall refrain from making a bride.
Shall omit to provide cooperation and support on an official’s action with intention in bad faith in any respect.
Shall refrain from giving gifts or presents to officials.

Shall provide cooperation to official organizations in performing duty of a good citizen.

N o g~ wp -

Shall have positive attitude and trust in government organizations.

Best Practices for Employees:
. Shall give the staffs proper wages and returns.
Shall pay attention on their welfare.
Shall maintain the development to increase their knowledge, skills and experiences; such as training.

Shall maintain equity on them.

1
2
3
4
5. Shall render study and become understandable on them.
6. Shall respect their rights of privacy.

7. Shall have confidence and trust in them.

8. Shall provide them with potential consultation.

9

. Shall provide them with support on their conducts in becoming a good citizen.
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Corporate Governance

Best Practices toward Society:

1. Shall refrain from undertaking business detrimental to the society.

2. Shall retrain from undertaking business, which shall harm to natural resources and
environment.

3. Shall pay attention on its own business undertaking not to cause pollution to the
surrounding and society.

4. Shall respect to the intellectual rights of the other people of business.

5. Shall provide cooperation to all parties in the community for a constructive build-up of the
saciety.

6. A businessman, in undertaking the business, shall pay attention on the creation of works for

people in the community in compatibility with the potential of such community.

Best Practices for Partners and Creditors:
1. Shall comply with the clauses of contracts between the Company and trading partners and

creditors.

2. Safety, Health, and Environment Policy

The Company has realized and considered that safety, health, and environment becomes a part
of the business. All employees and operational staff shall be provided with safety, health, and good
working environment. Since human resources are considered as the most valuable resources of the
organization, the Company has thus prescribed its policy to provide safety, health, and environment to
its employees. All employees shall aware and comply with the following paolicies:

1. The Company assumes its social responsibility to provide safety, health, environment, as well
as environmental protection, and to prevent the environmental impacts.

2. The Company shall provide safety, health, and environment management system, which is in
accordance with the regulations or not being lower than the criteria prescribed by law.

3. The Company has prescribed its palicy that the Executives and all Superiors shall be obliged
to supervise the safety, health, and environment of their subordinates strictly in accordance
with the prescribed rules and regulations of the Company; and that the management at all
levels shall be given with full independence to take any action to achieve the desired result.

4. The Company has prescribed its policy that all employees shall have their duties and
responsibilities to perform their work with the required safety, health, and environment strictly
in accordance with the prescribed rules and regulations of the Company.

5. The Company shall support and provide tools, instruments, and equipment in a safe condition
and shall provide safety equipment to all operational staff as well as the safe working area
and safety procedures; and shall disseminate knowledge to the operational staff and shall
motivate all employees to perform their work with safety and with the awareness of the
environmental impacts.

6. The Company has prescribed its palicy that the Safety, Health, and Environment Committee
shall be appointed to make plans and projects relating to safety and to develop work plans

and projects to effectively achieve the desired result.

3. Social Responsibility

The company has a policy called “Sino-Thai Payback Program” which aims for returning benefits
to the society and focuses on youth education and development, which are considered the principle
factors in the development of the country. The company has commenced this program since 2002 in
commemorative celebration of the company’s 40th years anniversary by donating school building,
libraries, multipurpose building, scholarship and school supplies to various schools indeed and

communities near by job sites as continuous practice in every year.
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Corporate Governance

In 2007, the company had continued to construct school building, libraries, multipurpose building, by donating
schalarship to the 3 following schools:

e Bang Klar Pittayakom School, Chachoengsao province — Charnvirakuls’ Building 23rd was dedicated as a computer

center building.

e Tumbol Klong —Pia School, Songkla Province - Charnvirakuls’ Building 24th was dedicated as a mosque.

e Wat Amparamtueng Anusorn School, Burirum province - Charnvirakuls’ Building 25th was dedicated as a library.

Mareover, The company donated computers to the 3 following schoals;

e Wat Trisamaki School, Samutprakarn province

e Baan Po-Chai School, Kon-Kaen province

e Baan Nong ya sai Schoaol, U-dorn Thani province

Disclosure and Transparency

1. Transparency and Disclosure of Information Policy

The Board of Directors has defined the transparency and disclosure of the information policy. The company’'s
performance shall be disclosed in both Financial Information and Non-Financial Information, correctly, adequately,
appropriately, on timely basis and with transparency to enable the general public, investors and stakeholders of the company.
Transparency and Disclosure of Information Policy has complied with Listed Company Act, Act and Enactment of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, Regulations and Notifications of Securities and Exchange Commission, and other related organizations.

Furthermore, the company has disseminated beneficial information and company’s performance both Financial

Information and Non-Financial Information such as good corporate governance policy, code of conduct, management
structure, mission and vision, annual report, financial statements, and press release from the company etc., through the
company’s website: www.stecon.co.th in both Thai and English language. This is another way of communications between the

company and related people.

2. Investor Relations

The Board of Directors has a policy on the disclosure — newsletters, in connection with the business and company’s
performance both financial information and non-financial information, correctly, adequately, appropriately, on timely basis and
with transparency to enable the general public, investors and interested persons of the Company to know of such

information. The policy on disclosure of the Company has complied with Public Company Limited Act B.E2535, Act and Royal

Enactment and Related Regulations and Notifications of Securities and Exchange Commission and Stock Exchange of
Thailand and other related organizations.

The Company has established Investor Relations Office to perform duty in communicating with the investors,
shareholders, analysts, related government sector and general public on the basis of properness and equity and such Office
can be contacted at Telephone No. 0-2260-1321 Extension 305 or E-mail: ir@stecon.co.th. In 2007, the company had 83
company visits.

In addition, the Company has disseminated data and information in connection with the business and performance of
the Company both financial information and non-financial information through the Company website both in Thai and English

languages which is yet another communicational channel between the Company and related persons.

3. Directors’ Reporting

The Company concentrates on the preparation of financial reports in compliance with the generally accepted
accounting standard in Thailand. The company has chosen proper accounting policy and kept constant practice including the
disclosure of financial information correctly, completely and appropriately. Henceforward, the reports on the responsibilities of
the Board of Directors to financial reports are included in the Annual Report - one of the roles and accountabilities of the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors and Audit Committee have expressed their opinions on financial statements shown
on the Annual Reports that they are correct, fully detailed, true and reasonable financial statements completed in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting standard whereby proper accounting policy is used and constantly

practiced.
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The Board of Directors, the Auditor and the Audit Committee have jointly considered the properness of the accounting

) th : )
standard presently used and internal control at least once a year. In 2007, on October 26 , 2007, the Audit Committee
and auditor jointly held a meeting concerning the point of view of the auditor towards the financial statements, opinions on

internal control, accounting policy of the Company and risks management.

Board Responsibilities

1. Balance of Power for Non-Executive Directors
There are a total of 12 directors on the Board of Directors consisting of 10 non-executive directors, which is
equivalent to 83% and 5 independent directors, which is equivalent to 42%. The Company is aware of the proper balancing

on the Board of Directors so that they can perform their duties independently in the capacity of the Board directors.

2. Aggregation or Segregation of Positions
To carry out operation management in concordance with the principle of corporate governance, the company has
clearly separated the powers and duties between the Chairman of the Board and the President whereby the Chairman of the

Board is a non-executive director and not the same person holding the title of the President.

3. Remuneration for Directors and the Management
The Board of Directors has discretely and properly considered the remuneration for each Director by considering the
accountability and expected advantages from each Director. Besides the Board of Directors shall compare the remuneration

to the general practice in the industry and set the remuneration for Directors has been approved by the shareholders’

meeting.

The Executives shall receive the remuneration that is linked to the performance of the company and that of each
Executive. The Board of Directors has an aobviously determined rely on the general practice in the industry. Therefore the
Board of Directors shall get the remuneration in an incentive level, which the Executives shall be satisfied and wiling to
continue joining with the Company.

In this regard, the details on the remuneration for Board of directors and the Executives have been disclosed in details

individually in the Annual Reports and Annual Information Declaration Form (Form 56-1).

4. Leadership and Vision

The Board of Directors has been determined to take the accountability in corporate governance to provide the steady

and sustainable company’s growth in order to create added value to the shareholders. With the roles and accountability of
the Board of Directors have been clearly stipulated including the separation of the accountability among the Board of
Directors, Audit Committee, Executive Board of Directors and the President. These are shown in the intranet and Annual
Reports to inform all employees and other public.

The Board of Directors and the Executive Committee shall jointly operate in relevant with each other. To consider and
approve the laying of the vision, mission, strategy, goal, palicy, business plan and budget in order that the Company business
execution can be carried out in an efficient and effective manner. The Board of Directors has kept consistent a follow-up the

Executive operations such as internal control and good corporate governance.

S. Board of Directors Meetings

The Company concerns on the Board of Directors Meetings because all directors are aware of their accountabilities
with regard to the control over and providing supervisions on the Company business, thus, the procedures relating to
directors meetings have been made with following details:

e The Board of Directors Meetings shall be held on a regular basis, i. e. once every quarter or a total of 4 times per
year. All directors shall attend such meetings except in the case of necessity and the number of meeting
attendance by each director shall be disclosed in the Annual Reports.

e Supported documents for a meeting shall be fully and completely prepared and forwarded to the Board of Directors
at least 7 days ahead of the scheduled meeting date in order that they can be clearly informed on the information

and details of each meeting agenda.
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e There have been clear agendas for the meeting. Directors shall be able to make motion in submitting the meeting
agenda to the Chairman of the Board including the expression of their opinions independently.

e The minutes of meeting shall be prepared in writing and the draft of such minutes shall be ready for submission to
the Board of Directors for consideration and scrutiny on the correctness within 14 days after the meeting was

convened before such minutes of meeting can be acknowledged in the next meeting.

In 2007, Board of Directors Meetings were held 4 times, the Board of Directors concerns on palicy, therefore, they had
focused on policy and the company’s procedures that adequate and appropriate to circumstances; moreover, it is complied
with law, rules and regulations stated by Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Furthermore, the company’s performance has usually revised by the Board of Directors quarterly.

6. Committees

The company has appointed an Audit Committee in order to provide the company with a good corporate governance
system. To cause versatility in management, give vision and straightforward opinion on financial reports. The company has
also appointed Internal Audit Department in order to facilitate the Management and consult over the risks management and
to have financial reports fully and correctly disclosed in accordance with related generally accepted accounting principle. It is
therefore; such financial reports shall be reliable, virtually good quality and added value to the organization eventually.

The Company has clearly prescribed the components, qualifications, autharization and duty of the Audit Committee by
adhering to the Best Practices Guidelines for Audit Committee.

In 2007, the Audit Committee held a total of 4 meetings and 2 extraordinary meeting with all of Audit Committee

members attending the meeting every time.

7. Board of Directors and Executives Training & Development
The development on Board of Directors has been made on the aspect of knowledge and skills to increase the point of
views of the directors, which shall enable them to lead the organization to attain the objectives. Directors completing the

course from Institute of Directors (I0D) are as follows:

1. Mrs. Tassanee Charnvirakul - FND

- RCP

2. Mr. Chavarat Charnvirakul - DAP

- FND

- RCP

3. Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul - DAP

Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul - FND

- DAP

Mr. Chamni Janchai - DAP

Pol.Lt.Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi - DAP

- ACP

- FND

7. Dr. Chaiyaphon Horrungruang - DAP

- DCP

- ACP

- MFR

8. Dr. Chumpal Phornprapa - RCP

9. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun - DCP

10. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien - DAP

11. Mr. Woraphant Chontong - DCP
- DCP Refreshment
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According to the human resources development palicy, the company has clearly stated such policy to
employees even though the Executives. The company supported employees in knowledge management with
providing in-house training, seminars, and short - term courses for the Executives, in case they can apply their

knowledge to manage and develop the company, thus it can pass through all objectives effectively.

8. Good Corporate Governance Paolicy

The Company is aware of the importance of good corporate governance with a strong confidence that a
good corporate governance policy will enhance the creation of the supremacy both on work process and
management process. This shall be able to upgrade both company’'s performance and management procedures.
Therefore, either investors or analysts are trusted in the company; moreover, corporate governance shall uplift the
shareholders’ value. Corporate governance policy had been stipulated by adhering to the Principle of Good
Corporate Governance in accordance with the best practice of listed company as stated in the guidelines of

Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The Company’s Good Corporate Governance Policies rely on 4 items:

1. Transparency is obviously shown as a basement for trust amongst stakeholders and the company.
Moreover, transparency creates the company’s effectiveness and capital market procedures. With
transparency, both shareholders and stakeholders or any other related people shall have a fair chance in
auditing the company’s performance.

2. Integrity is a way of undertaking business with straightforwardly beyond good morale. Financial

statements and other newsletters that have been disseminated to public and other investors should

fairly and were accurate prepared in compliance with the company’s financial status.

3. Accountability is essential toward the Board of Directors and shareholders. The Board of Directors shall
response for proposing all reports and company’s performance to shareholders. The accountability of the
Board of Directors should rely on appropriate rules and regulations because the declaration on such
company’s performance must be accurate due to the company’s success.

4. Competitiveness aims for creating progress and increasing shareholders’ value. Corporate governance shall
enhance the initiation without hinder, efficiency and the ability of leadership and vision. Therefore this will

cause the company advantages in competitiveness amongst the others.

The company adheres to this principle of corporate governance in operating its business. The company’s
good corporate governance policies are one of its execution strategies to sustain business and keep good records
on steady growth. In addition, to be trusted and believed in operating the business, the company is always
operates its business in compliance with rules and regulations of the principles of good corporate governance.

According to the policy of the company, good corporate governance becomes a main role of company’s
strategic in operation. The follow-up good corporate governance policies are appropriate and being concerned by
the Board of Directors. The company arranged the Board of Directors Meeting due to corporate governance
policies, and the meeting resolved that every department/section must make a strategic plan of each own to

support the strategic plans of the company.

9. Business Ethics and Code of Conducts for Directors, Executives, and Employees

The Company had prepared guidelines for business ethics to be adhered to Directors, Executive Committee
and Employees in carrying on their missions with honestly, in good faith and equity entirely for the employees,
clients, partners, creditors, affiliates and stakeholders including the general public and society. Details on the

Principle of Business Ethics are as follows:
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1. Integrity: which is an act to perform duties righteously with adherence to the principle and equity and do
only the correct things.

2. Law Abiding: which is an act to abide by laws, rules and requirements in connection with business
transactions.

3. Commitment to Excellence: which is a commitment to perform duties to excellence, give knowledge, be
prepared and consistently energetic in order to increase knowledge, expertise in all matters within own
responsibilities.

4. Reputation and Morale: which is an act to build up a good reputation of the Company and morale of the
staffs and the executives by participating not to perform any acts which will lead to the destruction of
inter-relationship but participating to perform any acts necessarily to solve problems or prevent any acts
of improper conducts of the others.

S. Accountability: which is the responsibility to fulfill the accountability by taking into consideration the
principle of ethics in making decision.

6. Transparency: Business transactions shall be accompanied by adequate disclosure of information in
accordance with the laws, rules and regulations of the organizations connected with the control and
supervision of business transactions.

7. Equitable Treatment: Treatments rendered to interested persons whether they are staffs, shareholders,
trading partners, creditors and debtors, etc., shall be in a manner of justice and equity. There shall be
the disclosure to related persons correctly.

8. Responsibilities to Environment: In performing duties, there shall be responsibilities to environment. The

principle, rules, regulations relating to the conservation of environment, community and society shall be
complied with.

9. Safety and Occupational Health: Proceeding in accordance with the laws and various related regulations
so that industrial standard in connection with wark safety including occupational health of the staffs can
be accordingly complied with.

10. Avoiding Conflict of Interest: By establishing various controlling mechanisms. To ensure that Directors and
Executives shall carefully and honestly perform their duties. Include the preservation of the Company’s
interest, provide of the Board of Directors structure with proper ratio. The directors being the people from

outside, having the provision covering the accountability and good information disclosure and employing

an independent auditor which shall assist in looking after the executives by certifying the matter relating

to the accounting and finance of the Company, etc.

In addition to the foregoing 10 Principle of Ethics, the Company had prepared the Rules of Practice towards
the interested persons of the Company as described under the topic of “Various Groups of Stakeholders.”

The Company has announced and informed the Principle of Business Ethics and Rules of Best Practice
towards the company’'s stakeholders to the Board of Directors, the Executives and employees. The Company
informed through the Board of Directors Meeting, Annual Employee Meeting and the intranet to enable them with
the use as guidelines for strict observance in performing their duties.

In additional, the Board of Directors has resolved at the meeting that the company shall revise code of best
practices for Directors, Executives, and employees, therefore, they shall be aware and perform as stated in the
code of best practices properly due to the good corporate governance. The code of best practices for Directors,
Executives, and employees are clearly stated in the meeting of employees that the company had arranged every

year and it had been posted in the company’s web intranet as well.

10. Controlling System and Internal Audit
The company has stated the explanation of controlling system, the Internal Audit, and risks management in

“Internal Control” section.
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The Company has a policy on internal control and internal audit as well as measures on the control and
supervision of all aspects of work operations. The Audit Committee shall oversee the suitability and efficiency of the
internal control provided by the Management including the control over the aspect of finance and work operations,
supervising duty performances, checking the law abiding and compliance controls.

Such internal control policy covers the compliances with various rules and policies, reliable accounting entry by
adhering the following principles:

e All items had been made are approved by the Executives and/or persons with specific authaority.

e All items entered into the accounts are correct items in accordance with generally accepted accounting

standard.

e To access to various assets and data from the information technology must be approved by the Executives

and/or person having specific authaority.

e |tem entries are made on the actual properties and relevant appraisal made on the actual condition.
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There were 3 audit committees accompanied with the company’s Auditor convened the Audit Committee
Meeting No.5/2007 dated on October 26th, 2007. Auditors gave its opinion on the internal control system of the
company that it is accurate, adequate and efficient. Besides, the Board of Directors also approved the Internal
Control System reports for the year 2007 that sufficient, suitable and accurate to the Board of Directors meeting
No. 6/2007 on November 1 Bth, 2007.

In addition, the Company also concentrates on the internal audit by appointing the Internal Audit Section. To
provide supervisions and take responsibility on the assessment in accordance with international standard and in
order to enable Internal Audit Section to perform its duties independently, the Company has, therefore, authorized
Internal Audit Section to report the result of its duty performances directly to Internal Audit Committee regularly.

The result of internal audit in 2007 revealed that internal audit reports to be in good level. Related
organization need to improve in accordance with the suggestions in the audit reports in time and it should be
corrected as the audit committee had advised to management committee, and it is therefore, the internal control
can be carried out more efficiently due to good corporate governance.

In as much as risks management are concerned, the Company, also, gives priority on the risk management
because the effective risk management will cause the company to attain the prescribed business objective and
strategy, good executed performance and duty performances in accordance with related rules and regulations. The
company adheres to the standardized risks management guidelines announced by the Stock Exchange of Thailand

and conducts constant follow-ups by having Internal Audit Department to provide advices.

Dividend Payment Policy:

Company dividend payment palicy;
The Company has a dividend payment policy of not less than forty percents (40%) of net profit before the
interest in the subsidiary companies when the Company makes profit, has no deficit and no additional investment in

mega project.

Dividend payment policy of subsidiary companies paid to the Company;
Board of Directors of subsidiary companies will consider the payment of dividend in accordance with the

performance of the respective subsidiary companies in each year.
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Connected Transaction
SIMSS:NOWNU

Outstanding transactions with related parties

1. Related transactions with Non-joint ventures

1. HTR Corporation Limited | 1.1 Accounts - 107,000 | The Company holds The building space is leased as
receivable - related 80.80% of shares in HTR | the Company’s office at the
Type of Business: parties; Corporation Limited. market price.
Real Estate Development 1.2 Rental Incomes 8,410,327 5,954,302
from office building There are 3 co-directors,
lease; including:
1.3 Accounts payable - 748
- related parties; 1. Mr. Chavarat
1.4 Loans from related 100,000,000 - Charnvirakul
parties; 2. Mr. Woraphant
1.5 Loan interest 3,338,507 - Chontong
payable, under Sub- 3. Mrs. Sanongnuch
clause 1.4; Charnvirakul
2. DKK Sino-Thai Incomes from 7,836,951 5,971,284 | The Company holds The Company is a joint
Engineering Co,, Ltd. trademark 35.00% of shares in venture between Denki Kyoei
usage fee DKK Sino-Thai Co,, Ltd, and the Company to
Type of Business: Engineering Ca,, Ltd. operate the business of
Design the foundation and integrated production of
structure of There are 2 co-directors, | telecommunication towers by
telecommunication towers, including: introducing engineering
production of technology to the production
telecommunication steel 1. Mr. Vallop and construction of
structure, canstruction and Rungkijvorasathien telecommunication towers
installation of through the transfer of
telecommunication towers, 2. Mr. Woraphant technology from Denki Kyoei
civil works, repairs and Chonthong Co, Ltd, in combination with
maintenance of the expertise in construction
telecommunication towers, work and preparedness of
inspection, improvement, personnel of the Company;
and strengthening of whereas, the Company has sent
telecommunication towers a team of engineers specialized
in construction and installation
of telecommunication towers of
the Company to work at
DKK Sino-Thai Engineering
Co,, Ltd, to assure that the
perfarmance of DKK Sino-Thai
Engineering Ca,, Ltd. shall meet
the standard acceptable to
customers and to maintain the
Company’ reputations.
Meanwhile, related transactions
shall be recognized as incomes
for the use of “Sino-Thai” within
the name of DKK Sino-Thai
Engineering Co, Ltd. The
trademark usage fee shall be
calculated at the rate of 1.25%
of the annual income of DKK
Sino-Thai Engineering Co,, Ltd.
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Connected Transaction

3. STIT Co,, Ltd. 3.1 Accounts payable 2,719,889 5,268,219 | There is a co-director, Purchase of machinery and
- related parties; spare parts; and repairs of the
Type of Business: Mr. Masthawin Company’s machinery at the
Distributor and service 3.2 Cost of machinery 25,330,331 23,310,286 | Charnvirakul market price;
provider of machinery and | and
equipment used in the spare parts under
construction and Sub-clause 3.1;
manufacturing industry
4. STP&I (Public) Ca,, Ltd. 4.1 Accounts payable - 780,041 | The Company holds - Purchase of machinery spare
- related parties; 1.01% of shares in parts; and repairs of the
Type of Business: STP&I (Public) Co,, Ltd. | Company’s machinery at the
Processing of steel 4.2 Cost of machinery 5,084,237 2,093,153 market price;
structure, piping and and spare parts under There are 4 co-directors,
welding, pressured Sub-clause 4.1; including: - The Company operates the
containers, heat-exchange 1. Mr. Chavarat business of module assembling
equipment, boilers and 4.3 Advanced 110,000,000 - Charnvirakul under Pluto LNG Project for
process maodel; receivable payment 2. Mr. Masthawin STP&I (Public) Co, Ltd. at the
Distributor and service under the Contract; Charnvirakul market price;
provider of machinery and 3. Pol. Lt. Gen. Jate
equipment used in the Mongkulhutthi
construction and 4. Mr. Chamni Janchai
manufacturing industry;
3. Kitpracha Thani Co, Ltd. | 5.1 Accounts 213,649,727 - | As the Company holds The Company has operated the
receivable - related 80.90% of shares in HTR | construction work of 7-storeyed
Type of Business: parties; Co,, Ltd, therefore, the residential condominium, with 2
Property Trading Company also holds basement floors of car park for
5.2 Receivable cash 9,719,626 - |80.90% of shares in Kitpracha Thani Co,, Ltd. at the
under Sub-clause 5.1; Kitpracha Thani Co., Ltd. | market price.
There are 3 co-directors,
including:
1. Mr. Chavarat
Charnvirakul
2. Mr. Woraphant
Chontaong
3. Mrs. Sanongnuch
Charnvirakul
2. Related transactions with Joint ventures
1. SJ Development 1.1 Accounts - - | The Company is a The Company has carried out
Joint Venture receivable of related stakeholder of SJ the construction of Panom
parties; Development Joint Sarakam-Kabin Buri Road under
Type of Business: 1.2 Unbilled - - | Venture subcontract and at the market
Construction Work receivables; price;
1.3 Related revenues; - - |In 2005, the Company
1.4 Receivable cash - 280,800 |held 50% of stakes;

under Sub-clauses 1.1,
1.2, and 1.3;

1.5 Retention
receivables;

In 2006, the Company
held 50% of stakes;

BR Construction Co, Ltd.,
held 50% of the stakes;




5181N155LUININU

dtuan

2. flamsgImen 21 gnmﬁmiﬁwﬁﬂm‘iﬁ 1,699,738 67511231 | ustmfidmleide Tufans | usEndumannassonuusuman
Ina-Alu-lny Fendouriu A Tnig-3lu-1ne @70 (sub-contract) &2
22 MaldfdldiBunds: - 68169327 |1 2548 fdmlMdy 20% | Uninde waznuwdonsa Tne
g3 fumannaasng 2.3 Tldsznini 72,993,584 526770541 | U 2549 fdwmldduc0% | mudulumusimaas
24 BudnsuIINTIeNs | 223,457,502 563807,540 |y Aasuaistu 80%
Tuda 21, 22, 2.3
25 nuseinka - 35,801,230
26 [Ewsuamieax - 27195646
douan
3. flan19amen 31 gnmffmiﬁwﬁamiﬁ 33,937,225 260,177,538 | fian1931nm Tnguiem UTENSUmMANADAFIUUUT UL
7 18 1an 104 endouriu fawlsidy foalud @ (sub-contract) AzWILEN
32 nelifdoluisends: | 22,823,051 210740016 |1 2548 famldids 10% | wdidnezen uStimomm
g3 Sumanriaadne 3.3 selAsznui 6,787,943 619075310 |1 2549 vinddmlaidy | wszaw 3 - auugidaionse
10% duldunzd Taenaniulumg
34 FuaRsuanaems | 433733674 | 1011153473 | lmig Aasvaisiu 40% TINAAG
luda 341, 32, 33 1185958 PauansAdn 30%
35 1wUIibHaL - 12,271,591 | NKK Corp. 20%
36 1nwsuaominay 195,831 18,986
duan
4. flamaIm 41 gnmﬁmiﬁwﬁﬂm‘iﬁ 2,798,695 59,867,047 | famaTin lpuddnd | uSEndumannaasanuusuman
au-ve—1a 1od endouriu dnilfidusiod @ (sub-contract) IASUNSSZUU
42 suldfidoliGendhs: | 86508671 | 228473819 | U 2548 uiHitdmM AUAGHIATUNTINNAYIUAT J I
g3 fumannaasng 43 Telaszvnein 116,363194 405,141,370 | lsidy 58% AagenBaneAsn uadan lae
4.4 [{uaATUINgIBMT | 300,024,014 151,088,184 |1 2549 uSwniddns S dullmusImaag
Tuda 41, 42, 43 s 58%
45 [udszinuanu 25,269,914 18,209,746 | U3dm 1o lad
4.6 1§wsUamieN 13263127 27074325 | ugdlaBian iaudiitd
duan (1964) 91in 42%
5. flamsTe 1od waa 54 gnmffmiﬁwﬁamiﬁ 186,957,071 3773847 | famsrwd Tapusnd | udensumannaasouuusuman
Aendouriu dldidusiod @ (sub-contract) AABIZU
g3 fumanaadne 52 ulifdoldisendis | 54493091 32195083 |1 2549 vidnddm waamﬁgjuﬁw ATWIEINTZAU
5.3 selAsznui 443274109 206,316,735 | ldidy 70% uAddma wSanamsUsznauduii 3
5.4 [BudnsuaINTIeMs | 209,160,077 549,577,824 | AIUAN 100% TAsomssue vsimawndu
luda 54, 52, 5.3 USHn woa 8 gl Tneandulumasiam
5.5 WnUseivHaw - 18,631,017 | N ualain uas AR
S6 [EwsuaminaN 310,661,587 372233002 | mMawididd 917 30%
dtuan
5. flan199 e Lad 1o 61 gnmffmiﬁwﬁamﬁﬁ 16,736,264 - | Aamenaw Taeudenfl | SEsumannaaseuuusumEn
endouriu dldidusiod @ (sub-contract) SruUUszn
g3 Sumannaadng 62 elfiiduluiends: | 95827,407 - | U 2550 usunildm malasomsuilatiumnis
6.3 elszniriu 108,783482 - |1dif so% wAfdwn | mAusawgUlnAusian mena
6.4 BudnsuIINTIBMS | 227110515 - | MUAN 100% WATTIAEN
luda 61, 62, 6.3 UgEN anAlve 20% Tnesadulumusanaia
6.5 liuUszinHaL 1,514,700 -
66 [nsuamineN 216,959,888 -




Connected Transaction

from construction
contracts;

2. Taisei-Sino-Thai 2.1 Accounts 1,699,738 67,911,231 | The Company is a The Company has carried out
Joint Venture receivable -related stakehaolder of Taisei- the construction of Pak Kret

parties; Sino-Thai Joint Venture | Bridge and connecting roads
Type of Business: 2.2 Unbilled receivables; - 68,169,327 and at the market price;
Construction Work 2.3 Related revenues; 72,993,584 526,770,541 | In 2005, the Company

2.4 Receivable cash 223,457,502 563,807,540 | held 20% of stakes;

under Sub-clauses 2.1,

2.2, and 2.3; In 2006, the Company

2.5 Retention - 35,801,230 |held 20% of stakes;

receivables;

2.6 Advances received - 27,195,646 | Taisei Corpaoration held

from construction 80% of the stakes;

contracts;
3. TNNS Joint Venture 3.1 Accounts 33,837,225 260,177,538 | Joint Venture; whereas, | The Company has carried out

receivable -related the Company is a the construction of the Chao
Type of Business: parties; stakeholder of TNNS Phraya River Bridge near Rama
Construction Work 3.2 Unbilled 22,823,051 210,740,016 | Joint Venture 3-Poo Jao Samrong Road,

receivables; In 2005, the Company crossing to Bang Kajao, at the

3.3 Related revenues; 6,787,943 619,075,310 | held 10% of stakes; market price;

3.4 Receivable cash 433,733674 | 1,011,133,473 |In 2006, the Company

under Sub-clauses 3.1, held 10% of stakes;

3.2, and 3.3; Taisei Corporation held

3.5 Retention - 12,271,591 | 40% of the stakes;

receivables; Nishimatsu Caonstruction

3.6 Advances received 185,831 18,986 | held 30% of the stakes;

from construction NKK Corp. held 20% of

contracts; the stakes;
4. Sino-Thai AS Joint 41 Accounts 2,798,695 59,867,047 | Joint Venture; whereas, | The Company has carried out
Venture receivable -related the Company is a the construction of BMA Mass

parties; stakeholder of Sino-Thai | Transit System Project,
Type of Business: 4.2 Unbilled 86,506,671 228,473,819 | AS Joint Venture extension of Sukhumvit Line
Construction Work receivables; In 2003, the Company and Silom Line, under

4.3 Related revenues; 116,363,194 405,141,370 | held 58% of stakes; subcontract at the market

4.4 Receivable cash 300,024,014 151,088,184 price;

under Sub-clauses 4.1, In 2006, the Company

42, and 4.3; held 58% of stakes;

4.5 Retention 25,269,914 19,208,746

receivables; Assaociate Engineering

46 Advances received 13,263,127 27,074,325 |(1964) Limited held 42%

from construction of the stakes;

contracts;
5. SL Joint Venture 3.1 Accounts 186,957,071 3,773,847 | Joint Venture; whereas, | The Company has carried out

receivable -related the Company is a the construction of water
Type of Business: parties; stakeholder of SL Joint | distribution canal, pumping
Construction Work 5.2 Unbilled 54,493,091 32,195,083 | Venture station, elevated bridge,

receivables; including Section 3 Building,

5.3 Related revenues; 443,274,109 206,316,735 | In 2006, the Company drainage project near

5.4 Receivable cash 203,160,077 549,577,824 | held 70% of stakes (but | Suvarnabhumi Airport under

under Sub-clauses 5.1, had 100% control subcontract and at the market

5.2, and 5.3; power); price;

3.5 Retention - 18,631,017

receivables; LC Transport and

5.6 Advances received 310,661,587 372,233,022 | Commerce Co,, Ltd. held

from construction 30% of the stakes;

contracts;
6. SA Joint Venture 6.1 Accounts 16,736,264 - | Joint Venture; whereas, | The Company has carried out

receivable - related the Company is a the construction of waterworks
Type of Business: parties; stakeholder of SA Joint | system under the Project on
Construction Work 6.2 Unbilled 95,627,407 - | Venture solving the problem of water

receivables; shortage of Nakhon Ratchasima

6.3 Related revenues; 109,783,482 - |In 2007, the Company Municipality, under subcontract

6.4 Receivable cash 227110515 - | held 80% of stakes (but |and at the market price;

under Sub-clauses 6.1, had 100% control

6.2, and 6.3; power);

6.5 Retention 1,914,700 -

receivables; Agqua Thai Co, Ltd. held

6.6 Advances received 216,959,888 - | 20% of the stakes;
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Connected Transaction

General Policy on Related transactions of the Company

Policy on Pricing
The value of related transactions shall be in accordance with the market price or competitive prices

of non-related parties, as per opinions of the Board of Directors.

Reasonability of Transactions

Related transactions shall be made on the basis of necessity and reasonability and for the maximum
benefits of the Company, as per opinions of the Board of Directors; whereas, the Audit Committee has
given its comments that such related transactions shall be in accordance with the characteristics of
general businesses; and the said transactions existed because the Company has operated its businesses
with subsidiaries, affiliated companies, and related companies in the normal course of businesses.
Transactions include construction service provision, purchase of equipment and other services; conditions
of related transactions shall be prescribed in accordance with the general commercial conditions and with
the market prices or competitive prices of non-related parties, and shall be considered according to the

proper procedures of approval and in accordance with the Company’s Rules and Regulations in all respects.

Measures or Procedures of Related Transaction Approval

According to the Company’s policy, the procedures of related transactions made with parties in

conflict shall be submitted to the Board of Directors’ meeting for consideration; whereas, the Audit
Committee shall attend the meeting to consider and approve the related transactions, which shall be in
accordance with the law governing securities and stock market, and regulations, announcements, orders,
or requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET); whereby, parties in conflict or stakeholders shall

have no voting right to pass the resolution on such related transactions.

Policy or Trends on Related Transactions
The Company shall have its related transactions with particular companies involved, as may be

necessary and only in accordance with the normal course of business operations such as sale/purchase of

construction materials, construction work, office building lease, etc., and such related transactions may
exist in the future, according to normal course of business operations of the Company. The Company has
its policy to make related transactions with parties in conflict by comparing prices and quality of
operations for the maximum benefits of the Company, and at the most proper price. The Company shall
treat the parties in conflict similarly to other entrepreneurs. The Company shall prescribe the terms and
conditions of such related transactions in accordance with the normal course of business operations; and
prices shall be compared with prices of the third parties; moreover, it shall be considered according to the

proper procedures of approval and in accordance with the Company’s Rules and Regulations in all respects.
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Report of Independent Auditor Summary

Financial statements of Company and subsidiaries presented the financial position as at December 31, 2007
and 2006, operation result and cash flow for the years then ended correctly in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

According to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements item 4, effective in 2007, the Company changed
its accounting policy fro recording investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates in the
separate financial statements from equity method to cost method. The Company has thus restated the separate

financial statements as at 31 December 2006 and for the year then ended to reflect this accounting change.

Management Discussion and Analysis
In part of management Discussion and Analysis, the investors should learn supplemented documents such as
consolidated financial statements, financial performance in the past and updated with the notes to consolidated

financial statements and information which is presented in this document.

Construction and service income and Other Revenues

In 2007, Company and subsidiary had total revenues of Baht 17,473 million. Total revenues were increased
approximately 17.93% from last year and main revenues came from construction and service, which were equally
Baht 17,281 million or approximately 98.90% of total revenues. The revenues can be divided into 2 types, the
construction revenues amount Baht 17,217 million and revenues from rental and service of subsidiary (HTR
Corporation Ltd.) amount to Baht 64 million. The revenue growth was amounting to Baht 2,656 million, construction
revenues show 17.41% growth, and rental and service income show 50.32% growth from last year.

Although investment in construction sector was slow down in the recent year and the quantity of new
construction work of the Company has decreased, the main revenues were grown up because the company provided
a volume of various resources in order to accelerate its operation and expand its income from mega projects which
were in its hands. Furthermore, it had a number of new bidding projects during the year.

Its subsidiary; that is, HTR Corporation Ltd. gained the revenues from rent and service, it was more increased
at 50.32% due to the increasing of rental rate and rental area of Sino-Thai Tower including gained the revenues

from more investment in Kijprachathani Co., Ltd., which developed the real estate of Maison de Siam project.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Structure of construction revenues, classified by type of clients

LR A e i 58 0 e | 0 0

Public Sector (including State Enterprise) 12,015 69.79 9,615 65.57 9,046 69.20
Private Sector 5,202 30.21 5,049 34.43 4,027 30.80
Total 17,217 100.00 14,664 100.00 13,073 100.00

Revenues ratio of public sector (including state enterprise) per private sector is at 69.79% : 30.21% the
revenues ratio of construction in public sector has increased because the increasing continuity of such market in
serving for the company from last year. The important projects of public sector in 2007 were the construction of
Suvarnabhumi Airport Rail Link and City Air Terminal Project, and Bangkok Government Office Center Project. The
revenues from construction that derived from private sectors in 2007, were Ratchaburi Power Plant Project, Songkhla

Combined Cycle Power Plant Project, and the Park at Chidlomn condominium Project.

Structure of construction revenues, classified by type of works

il TR LU AT

Infrastructure 7,031 40.84 6,375 43.47 5,284 40.42
Industrial 830 482 870 5.93 743 5.68
Building 4115 23.90 3,361 22.92 5,160 39.47
Energy 5,004 29.06 3873 26.41 1,885 14.42
Environment 237 1.38 185 1.26 - -

Total 17217 100.00 14,664 100.00 13,073 100.00

When revenues structure was classified by types of works, in 2007, the company had its high revenues ratio
especially from the infrastructure at Baht 7,031 million or 40.84%, the energy was at Baht 5,004 million or 29.06%,

the building was at 23.90%, industrial was at 4.82%, and the environment was at 1.38%

Besides, other revenues of company and its subsidiary was approximately Baht 191 million and income from
settlement of doubtful debt was Baht 43 million, interest income was approximately Baht 37 million, profits from
long-term investment selling amount to Baht 32 million, share of profit from associated company and joint venture

of subsidiary amount to Baht 16 million, and other revenues amount to Baht 64 million.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of Construction and service was at Baht 16,981 million, gross profit was 300 million or equivalent to
1.74% gross profit margin which was better than last year (2006s) in case of gross loss equally Baht 1,507 million
caused by the provision for loss of projects. Moreover, company and its subsidiary had the policy on costs control
due to fluctuation environment of construction material price and oil price at the present.

Selling and administrative expenses was equivalent to Baht 3531 million. As from 2006s, it was increased at
Baht 254 million such increasing was in accordance with the Construction and Service income. Revenues ratio was
equal to 2.01% of the total revenues that company and its subsidiary still emphasized continuously on costs contral.

In 2007, there was Baht S84 million presented as an interest expenses. As from 2006s, it presented at Baht
104 million, such decreasing caused by bank overdrafts, short-term loans from financial institutions and decreased

debenture.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profitability

In 2007, though the profit rate was Baht 22 million, it was better than the previous year that the company
had Baht 1,780 million loss. The company had its policy according to cost control. With the performance of strict
controlling the cost of construction and services and few mistakes, the profit rate was increasing.

The company’s income recognized from new projects was rather low because new bidding projects in the year
2007 were mostly from the Government sector, which had highly competition, as there were quite limited offers.
Besides, the prices of construction materials were widely fluctuated then gross margin from new projects were under
average as well.

The company and its subsidiaries had gross profit at Baht 300 million or 1.74% of the main revenues, gross
profit margin, earning before tax and interests was 125 baht million or 0.71% of total revenue and net profit was

22 baht million or 0.12% net profit margin.

Financial Status
As at 31 st December 2007, the company and its subsidiaries have total assets of Baht 14,026 million, total
liabilities of Baht 10,133 million and shareholders’ equity of Baht 3,833 million.

Assets
The company and its subsidiaries’ total assets as at 31 st December 2007 was Baht 14,026 million, which

decreased from the previous year for Baht 1,760 million or 11.15%. Company and its subsidiaries’ assets comprised

of current assets of Baht 39,610 million, property, plant and equipment of Baht 3,658 million, and other non-current
assets of Baht 4,417 million.

The current assets were Baht 1,053 million decreased from the previous year. The highest value of current
assets were unbilled receivables, trade accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents. The assets that had

significantly changed are as follows:

Construction in progress had decreased 699 million baht
Trade accounts and note receivables had decreased 630 million baht
Cash and cash equivalents had decreased 236 million baht

The decreasing of total current assets in trade accounts receivable and construction in progress was resulted
from faster operation and clearing debts of the company.

Value of property, plant and equipment of Baht 3,659 million had decreased Baht 336 million from the previous
year as the result of depreciation and sales of some fixed assets which expired or in disused conditions. Therefore,
the company has to invest more in order to have sufficient assets to substitute and increase the fixed assets to be
adequate for the operation’s need.

As at 31 s December 2007, the company’s equipment and vehicles from hire purchase contracts and financial
lease contracts were worth for 521 million baht.

Value of other non-current assets (apart from property, plant and equipment) was Baht 757 million which
consisted of: Accounts receivable relating to construction of Suvarnabhumi Airport Rail Link contract, Investment,
loans, withholding tax, and other assets. The item which had significant change was Accounts receivable relating to
construction of Suvarnabhumi Airport Rail Link contract which decreased baht 413 million. This was a burden from

value added tax and withholding taxes of the project and was already paid.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Quality of Assets

The assets value of company and its subsidiaries according to the balance sheet reflected to the fair value. In
case of any depreciated estimation of an asset, they shall set up a reserve to make sure that its value was not
significantly different.

In 2007, HTR Corporation Ltd, the subsidiary of the company, had increased its investment in Kitprachathani
Co., Ltd. for Baht 55 million with 100% shareholding.

The company and its subsidiaries had already made allowance for loss for investment in case of a tentative
depreciation of such investment. They believed that the reserve was adequate and the amount of its capital

investment was close to fair value.

Accounts Receivable

As at 31 st December 2007, The company and its subsidiaries had accounts receivable of Baht 1,561 million
net. This included the related parties accounts receivable 37 million baht or 2.37% of total accounts receivable, and
unrelated parties accounts receivable of Baht 1,524 million or 97.63% of total accounts receivable.

In 2007, accounts receivable decreased Baht 6350 million from previous year: Baht 334 million of unrelated
parties accounts receivable as a result of faster collection of receivable, and Baht 316 million of related parties
accounts receivable such as TNNS Joint Venture and Taisei-Thai Joint Venture.

Allowance for doubtful accounts was set at Baht 109 million, which was estimated adequately by the company

and its subsidiaries at the present. There was a doubtful debts recovery Baht 43 million of which Baht 40 million
was received as income from settlement of doubtful debts with an account receivable whose debt was totally Baht
83 million.
Liquidity

Net Cash flow of the company and its subsidiaries decreased of Baht 236 million from the brought forward
amount of Baht 1,306 million at the beginning of the year resulting the cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the year was equal to Baht 1,070 million as the followings:

2007

Cash flow from (used in) operating activities 332 B35 262
Cash flow from (used in) investing activities (67) (611) (1,552)
Cash flow from (used in) financing activities (501) 750 1,554
Net cash flow increase (decrease) (2386) 774 264
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 1,306 531 267
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of year 1,070 1,306 531

Cash flow received from operating activities was baht 332 million. Cash paid from investing activities was baht
67 million. Significant cash flows were paid for investment in fixed asset of Baht 2394 million, land awaiting for
development of Baht 38 million, received from sale of asset of Baht 250 million, net cash paid from financing
activities of Baht 501 million. BDuring the year, the cash flows were repayment of overdrafts and short- term loans
from financial institutions of Baht 527 million, repayment of bond of Baht 125 million, repayment of hire purchase
creditors and financial lease creditors of Baht 1350 million.

Net cash flow of the company and its subsidiaries decreased of Baht 236 million as the result of financial debt
repayment and investment in fixed assets to increase efficiency. Liquidity ratio and acid test ratio of the company
and its subsidiaries were 0.99 times and 0.69 times respectively, which were rather stable compared to the
previous year. Cash flow ratio was 0.03 times, which decreased from the previous year, which was at 0.07 times

according to the less received of cash flow from operation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital expenditure

In 2007, the company and its subsidiaries had capital expenditure in property and construction equipment and
machines for Baht 5239 million (cash payment of Baht 294 million and for hire purchase contracts and financial lease
contracts for Baht 235 million.)

In consideration on capital expenditure of the company, the company conducted annual investment plan
proposed to Management committee. The decision of investment shall be made as the calculation of return on
investment compared to cost of capital.

The company and its subsidiaries believed that all expenses for investments at present and in the future would

be used at full efficiency where there was an agency to supervise and monitor the investments.

Sources of Capital

The company and its subsidiaries had Debt to Equity Ratio at 2.60 times from liabilities of Baht 10,1 34 million
and shareholders’ equity of Baht 3,893 million.

Use of capital from liabilities and advances received from construction contracts had decreased. There was
repayment for financial liabilities (Interest-bearing debts): overdrafts and short term loan from financial institutions,
redemption of bonds.

Liabilities consisted of: Interest-bearing Debts of Baht 1,682 million and operation debt of Baht 8,432 million.

Interest-bearing Debts consisted of overdrafts and short-term loan from financial institutions, bonds, hire purchase

creditors and financial lease creditors. Operation debts consisted of accounts payable, unbilled payable, advanced

received from construction contracts.

Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

As at 31 s December 2007, shareholders’ equity of the company and its subsidiaries was Baht 3,893 million,
Baht 17 million lessen than the previous year. The causes for change of shareholders’ equity were as follows:

The exercise of warrants which caused an increase of paid up capital for Baht 1.56 million.

Revaluation surplus decreased of Baht 40 million.

Unrealised gain on available-for-sale securities increased of Baht 12 million.

Unappropriated deficit of Baht 1,360 million decreased of Baht 22 million from last year because of net profit.
Liabilities
As at 31 s December 2007, the company and its subsidiaries had total liabilities of Baht 10,134 million. This
amount increased from the previous year, which was at Baht 1,743 million. It consisted of Interest-bearing Debts for
baht 1,682 million from overdrafts, short-term loans from financial institutions, bond, hire purchase creditors, financial
lease creditors and liabilities from operation such as accounts payable, unbilled payable, advances received from
construction contracts at baht 8,432 million.
The credit facilities of the company and its subsidiaries from financial institutions were secured by the
guarantees and mortgages/ pledges of the assets listed below.
Fixed deposits totaling Baht 58.8 million
9.3 million shares in HTR Corporation, Ltd.
Pledge of the company’s land with net book value of Baht 717 million
Pledge of office condominiums with net book value of Baht 0.7S million
The transfer right of the claim of collections from construction contracts to a bank. The company can
normally withdraw from the transfer. As at 31 s December 2007, the balance of the accounts receivable under the

right transfer agreement was Baht 279 million
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Management Discussion and Analysis

An associated company’'s investments amounting to 562,000 ordinary shares of P.P. Coral Resort Co., Ltd. In
order to secure loan facility of P.P Coral Resort Co., Ltd.

As at 31 s December 2007, the commitments and contingent liabilities of the company and its subsidiaries
were listed below.

Outstanding letters of guarantee totaling Baht 10,137 million, issued by financial institutions on behalf of the
Company in respect of certain performance bonds as required in the common practice of the Company, subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities.

The Company has been sued for compensating totaling approximately Baht S1 million. The Court is still
considering the cases. The Company's management believes that the outcome of these cases will be favorable to

the Company and therefore no provision for liability has been set-aside in the accounts.

Financial Risks

Financial risks composed of interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and deferred income risk.

The company and its subsidiaries exposed to interest rate risk since they had deposit accounts with financial
institutions, short-term and long-term loans, creditors from hire purchase contracts and financial lease contracts

and bond. However, most of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities have floating interest rates which fluctuate

in line with market interest rate of fixed interest rates which will be due in a short period of time, the interest rate
risk is expected to be minimal.

For the foreign currency risk, the company and its subsidiaries have entered into forward contracts to mitigate
those risks.

Loans, which company and its subsidiaries lent out, mostly related to accounts receivables. Therefore, the
company and its subsidiaries were very careful by considering from their reliability, capability of repayment and
adequate collaterals before joining the bids or preparing contracts and had procedures to follow up their repayment.

The company realized that unbilled receivables risk might cause effects to cash flow for the operation since it

was in a high amount compared to total assets. The company regularly checked its collection progress continuously

to reduce such risk.

Influential Factors on Business in the Future
The company and its subsidiaries’ operations were impacted by the overall economic situations and
construction investment. However, the Company believed that the economy would be at least stable and get better

as to the Government’s economic stimulation policy.
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Audit Committee of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited consists of
3 members are Independent Directors and Non Executive Directors. The 3 committee members are

Mr. Chamni Janchai Chairman of the Audit Committee
Police Lieutenant General Jate Mongkolhutthi The Audit Committee
Dr. Chaiyaphon Horrungruang The Audit Committee

Audit Committee carries out the missions in accordance with the role assigned by the Board of Directors
independently without gaining information from the Executives and related employees. Audit Committee has a
scope of responsibilities and verification to insure that the company has accurate and reliable financial reports,
suitable internal control, proper abiding by Laws and requirements of related organization that provide
supervisions to the company. Such organization shall focuses the emphasis on the company’'s performance
relevant to the principles of good corporate governance.

In 2007, Audit Committee held 6 meetings with all members attending and sufficient quorum in every
meeting and eventually submitted performance reports to the Board of Directors on regular basis whereby the
matter of significance can be concluded as follows:

e The considerations on quarterly financial statements and the annual financial statements already
audited by certified accountant prior to the submission to the Board of Directors and disseminations to

shareholders and the public.

e The considerations and approvals on annually internal audit plan that made by Internal Audit
Department. To concentrate on the purposes of the internal audit including significant risks that might
impact to each job site.

e The considerations and acknowledgements on the annual internal audit plan, internal audits reports
and the result of the follow up on the corrections of the matter which should be corrected and
recommendations in accordance with the internal audit reports as well as the successful achievements
on internal audit operations reported by Internal Audit Department Manager.

e The meetings with Auditors aims for being acknowledged the point of views of Auditors on financial

statements, internal audit, accounting policy, and certified risks management.
¢ The considerations on rules and policies on the selection and appointment of the company’s Auditors
as well as the remuneration for Auditors.

e The considerations and supports the company’s good corporate governance practices and development.

The Audit Committee also gave its recommendation to the Internal Audit Department to support the
development of knowledge for internal auditors as well as coordinating with the Management in order that the
control and the supervision system can be carried out efficiently and effectively in compliance with company’s
work plan.

Through the year of 2007, the Audit Committee and the Auditors have the same point of view that the
company’s financial statements were reasonably correct in materiality comply with the generally accepted
accounting principle. The disclosure of newsletters was adequate and internal control was good, proper, and
compatible with the Rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

—

Mr. Chamni Janchai
Chairman of the Audit Committee

February 20, 2008
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The Board of Directors of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited has carried
out actions in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association on the presentation of balance
account and statement of income account then ended as at December 31, 2007, which had already bee
audited by the auditor, to shareholders in accordance with the prescribed period of twelve months cycle
which was within the period of time before the ending of the Company’s accounting period. The Company
Board of Directors hereby warrants that the financial reports expressed in this 2007 Annual Reports are
true and reasonable, having correct, complete and adequate accounting data on which the Company Board

of Directors has already considered and deemed expedient to be submitted to the shareholders.

The Company Board of Directors is of the view that the Company has duly exercised proper
accounting policy and kept constant practice and discrete consideration on the reasonability in completing
the Company’s financial statements this time. The balance sheet then ended as at December 31, 2007,
statement of income, statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and statements of cash flows then
ended as at December 31, 2007, both of the Company and integrated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries are reasonably correct and completed in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principle which has been constantly performed.

The Company Board of Directors is confident that it has verified the Company’s important data and
information in all respects and paid attention on the consideration of financial reports constantly and

continuously.

For and on behalf of the Company:

STl //ﬁ £ l///o/)

(Mrs. Tassanee Charnvirakul) (Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien)

Chairman of the board President
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Office of the Auditor of the Company and subsidiaries,

Ernst and Young Office Limited,

33rd Floor, Lake Ratchada Building, 193/136-137,
New Ratchada Pisek Road,

Bangkok 10110.

Remuneration on the account audits of the Company and subsidiaries.
Company’s auditing fee in 2007 is Bt.1,344,000.
The Company’s subsidiaries’ auditing fee in 2007 is Bt.384000.

The affiliated companies of the subsidiaries’ auditing fee in 2007 is Bt.117,500.

Other expenses:

-None-
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Report And Consolidated Financial Statements 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

Report of Independent Auditor

To the Shareholders of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company
Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the separate financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Public Company Limited for the same periods. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
management of the Company and its subsidiaries as to their correctness and the completeness of the presentation. My

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that | plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the results of their operations, and cash flows for

the years then ended, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion on the above financial statements, | draw attention to the matter as discussed in Note 4
to the financial statements whereby, effective the year 2007, the Company changed its accounting policy for recording
investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates in the separate financial statements from the equity

method to the cost method. The Company has thus restated the separate financial statements as at 31 December 2006

&7 .0l

Supachai Phanyawattano

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930

and for the year then ended to reflect this accounting change.

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 18 February 2008




Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Balance Sheets

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,070,319,584 1,305,853,674 969,861,662 5 130,7774099
Current investments - marketable securities 94,500 148,500 94,500 148,500
Trade accounts and notes receivable
Unrelated parties - net 7 1,523,715,869 1,857,710,999 1,371,347,957 1,803,682,365
Related parties - net 7.8 36,954,038 353,186,348 455,908,893 391,566,938
Trade accounts and notes receivable - net 1,560,668,807 2,210,897,347 1,827,256,950 2,195,249,303
Unbilled receivables 8 4,039,250,595 3,928,657,972 4,000,289,250 3,812,080,392
Retention receivables - net 8 862,881,764 862,324,063 846,753,051 853,556,714
Construction in progress 635,843,593 dreteyalisy) 4l clefe] B38I843I59354* 11334614,,303
Current portion of loans to related parties 8 79,524,141 213387:897 ~ =
Development cost of condominium units for sales 9 3005039350 5 = s
Other current assets
Advances to subcontractors - net 847,558,296 762,391,706 877,830,641 753,366,798
Refundable input tax - 163,565,130 - (I68ISESYISE
Others - net 113,136,906 91,810,855 88,195,245 75,165,374
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 9,609,889,636  10,662,698,447 9,246,134,892 10,358,520,609
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted bank deposits 58,770,780 285,851 58,770,780 285,851
Accounts receivable relating to construction
of Suvarnabhumi Airport Rail Link contract 10 = 418,560,001 = 418,560,001
Investments in subsidiaries (5 - - 440,090,005 440,090,005
Excess of net book value of subsidiary
over cost of investment (14,858,978) (18,355,208) - -
Investments in jointly controlled entities 2 K . - E
Investments in associates 118) 203,556,797 196,384,694 2,799,700 2,799,700
Other long-term investments - net 14 44,305,294 43,074,892 BSS58:29( 34,224,042
Loans to related parties - net of current portion 8 12eEEsEEs 87,741,022 = 278,145
Loans to other company = 85,259,365 = =
Property, plant and equipment - net 15 65287 8iU]i2 3,985,556,700 3421,103,303 3,683473,105
Other non-current assets
Withholding tax 397,536,694 306,628,260 397,536,694 306,628,260
Land awaiting for development 38,000,000 = - =
Others - net 16,997,421 8,821,874 18,703,543 10,220,670
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,416,616,605 5,123,858,451 4,374557,316  4,896,560,778

TOTAL ASSETS

14,026,506,241

15,786,656,838

13,620,692,208

15,255,081,388

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Balance Sheets (Continued)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from 16 467,853,306 995,483,793 467,853,306 995,483,793
financial institutions
Trade accounts and notes payable
Unrelated parties 3,970,934,548 3,576,495,048 3958,078,721  3,480,285,678
Related parties 8 2,719,989 6,048,260 2,719,988 6,049,008
Total trade accounts and notes payable 8:97.8:654.987% 3,582,543,308 3,960,798,710 3,486,334,686
Unbilled payable 1,415,421 ,966 1,040,568,425 1,369,584,269 990,330,483
Current portion of hire purchase creditors 18 39,787,216 S 6169798 39,787,216 146112798
Current portion of financial lease payable 18 100,625,871 65,134,140 10062587 65,134,140
Current portion of debenture S 125,000,000 125,000,000 125,000,000 125,000,000
Current portion of long-term loans 20 500,000,000 400,000,000 500,000,000 400,000,000
Cash receipt under construction contract 21 454,320,000 - 454,320,000 -
Loans from related party 8 - - 100,000,000 -
Other current liabilities
Advances received from construction contracts 8 1,973,657 222 3,584,846,411 1,901,859,441 3,559,178,274
Undue output tax 109,093,618 139,458,721 (MISASBIBIE 141,979,754
Pravision for loss on construction project 7/ 375,227,866 721,244,312 375,227,866 721,244,312
Others 137,946,497 95,726,556 108,497,862 74,931,949
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,672,688,089 10,801,617,464 Si62 2 UiV Gk 22958
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Hire purchase creditors - net of current portion 18 6,282,594 46,069,804 6,282,594 46,069,804
Financial lease payable - net of current portion 18 171,984,084 70,531,446 171,884,084 70,531,446
Debentures - net of current portion 19 - 125,000,000 - 125,000,000
Long-term loans - net of current portion 20 270,692,013 = 200,000,000 =
Cash receipt under construction contract 21 - 454,320,000 - 454,320,000
Undue output tax relating to construction
of Suvarnabhumi Airport Rail Link contract 18 = 365,169,245 3 365,169,245
Pravision far loss jointly controlled entities 12 2,400,837 2,400,837 = =
Other liabilities 9,543,579 11,548,561 = =
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 460,903,107 1,075,038,893 378,266,678 1,061,090,495

TOTAL LIABILITIES

JEHESSSSINEAEE

(KR B876!697:857

10,000,372,035

11,672,319,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Balance Sheets (Continued)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

(Unit: Baht)

Unappropriated (deficit) (1,359,873,759)

(1,381,544,880)

(1,448,876,698)

Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital gl
Registered
1,350,250,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 1,350,250,000 1,350,250,000 11,350:250: 000+ S»8S0:230.600
Issued and fully paid-up
1,186,208,6189 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
(2006: 1,184,644,989 ordinary shares
of Baht 1 each) 22 1,186,208,619 1,184,644,989 1,186,208619 1,184,644,989
Share premium 2,828,907,312 2,828,907,312 2,828,907,312 2,828,907,312
Revaluation surplus
The Company’s revaluation surplus 445,631,620 445,631,620 445,631,620 445,631,620
Share of revaluation surplus of subsidiary 84,049,992 123,947,053 = =
28 529,681,612 569,578,673 445,631,620 445,631,620
Warrants 24 490,645,383 490,645,383 490,645,383 490,645,383
Unrealised gain (losses) on available-for-sale securities SV 4222 1,337,961 14,765,922 2,308,761
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 25 1:03:@38,041.5 103,038,015 103,038,015 103,038,015

(1,472,414,376)

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO

THE COMPANY'S SHAREHOLDERS 3,792,321,404 3,796,607,453 3620,320,173 3,582,761,704
MINGRITY INTEREST - equity attributable to minarity

shareholders of subsidiaries 100,593,631 113,392,088 = =

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 3,892,815,035 3,909,999,541 3620,320,173 3,582,761,704

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 14,026,506,241

15,786,656,898

13,620,682,208

15,255,081,388

. Vellap

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Income Statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
REVENUES
Construction and service income 17,281,647,288 14,706,685,258 17.149,640,682 14,472,665,608
Other income
Interest income 36,892,694 64,092,951 22,679,138 47,946,067
Gain on sales of long-term investment 14 31,980,861 5,293,750 31,980,861 5,293,750
Income from settlement of doubtful debt 7 42,833,405 1,200,000 42,833,405 1,200,000
Others 64,209,092 39,822,077 71,386,138 45,086,017
Share of income from investment in associate {F a7 1208 = 5 =
TOTAL REVENUES 17,473134543 - 14817,094036 17,318520,224 14,572,191,442
EXPENSES
Cost of construction and services 16,981,340,217 16,214,051,452 16,877,063964 15,985,539,473
Selling and administrative expenses €151k el (&) CIE)S) 254,270,592 305,318,804 250,669,392
Foreign exchange loss 15,636,456 = 15,636,456 -
Share of loss from investments in
jointly controlled entities and associates - 17,869,431 - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 17,348293672 16486191475 17,198,019224 16,246,208,865
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INTEREST EXPENSES
AND CORPORATE INCOME TAX 124,840,871 (1,669,097,439) 120,501,000 (1,674,017,423)
INTEREST EXPENSES (94,032,623) (103,859,921) (96,963,322) (103,859,921)
CORPORATE INCOME TAX 27/ (12,497,023) (9,593,968) = =
INCOME (LOSS) AFTER CORPORATE INCOME TAX B 8ildE22s (1,782,551,328) 23,537,678 (1,777.877,344)
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTEREST SBS5S1896 2,872,180 < =
NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 21671121 (1,779,679,1 48) 23,537,678 (1,777.877,344)
EARNINGS PER SHARE 28
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) 0.02 (1.51) 0.02 (1.51)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) 0.02 (GBS 0.02 61.5)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital surplus Minarity
Unrealised Retained earnings interest
gains - equity
The Share of Share  (losses) on attributable
Issued and Company's revaluation subscription  available-  Appropriated- to minority
fully paid-up revaluation surplus of received in  for-sale statutory Unappropriated  shareholders
Note share capital ~Share premium surplus subsidiaries Warrants advance  securities reserve (deficit) of subsidiaries Total
Balance as at
31 December 2005 1,024482,589 1,102,901,160 445631,620 161,018860 490,885,383 6,600 (3269987) 103,038,015 670,548,393 125054926 4,120,297,659
Cash receipts from 22 160,000,000 1,725166,152 = = = = = = s - 1,885166152
capital increase
Increase in share capital 22,24 162,400 840,000 - - (240000)  (6,600) - - - - 755,800
from the exercises
of warrants
Share of amortisation of 23 - - - (37,071,907) - - - - - [8752458) (45,824,365)
revaluation surplus
of subsidiary
Increase in fair value of - - - - - - 4607948 - - (38,200) 4,569,748
available-for-sale
securities
Dividend paid 29 = = > = = = s - [e72414129) - [272414129)
Net loss for the year s = = F = = = - [(1,779679148) (2872,180) (1,782,551,328)
Balance as at 1184644989 2828907,312 445631,620 123,947,053 490,645,383 - 1,337961 103038015 (1,381,544,880) 113,392,088 3,909,993,541
31 December 2006
Increase in share capital 22, 24 1,563,630 = 2 = = = = = = = 1,563,630
from the exercises
of warrants
Share of amortisation of 23 - - - (37,071,907) - - - - - (8752458 (45824365
revaluation surplus
of subsidiary
Sale of revaluation assets 23 - - - (2825154) - - - - - (667,002) (3492156)
Increase in fair value of = : = = S = EelEEs] = - (19101) 12,357,160
available-for-sale
securities
Net income for the year 3 = = = = = = = 21671121 (3,359,896) 18,311,225
Balance as at
31 December 2007 1186208619 2828907,312 445631,620 84049832 490,645,383 - 13714222 103038015 (1,359873759) 100593631 3892,915035

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Y1001 o) O E Ta T LT WS s 1o o [o [T o [VI1AYll FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006
(Unit: Baht)
Separate Financial Statements
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Unrealised
Share of Share  gains (losses)
Issued and The Company's  revaluation subscription  on available-  Appropriated-
fully paid-up revaluation surplus of received in for-sale statutory Unappropriated
Note share capital ~ Share premium surplus subsidiaries Warrants advance securities reserve (deficit) Total

Balance as at

31 December 2005

- as previously reported 1024482589 1102901160 445631620 161,018960 490,885,383 6600 (3269387) 103038015 670,548,393 3,995,242,733
Cumulative effect of the change

in accounting palicy for

investments in subsidiaries,

jointly controlled entities

and associates 4 = = - [(181,018,960) = = 809,000 = (92,671,300) (252,881,260
Balance as at

31 December 2005

- as restated 1024482589 1,102901,160 445,631,620 - 490,885,383 6600 (2460987) 103038015 577,877,083 3742,361,473
Cash receipts from

capital increase 22 160,000,000 1,725,166,152 = = = = s % - 1,885166,152
Increase in share capital

from exercises of warrants 22, 24 162,400 840,000 - - (240,000) (6,600 - - - 755,800
Increase in fair value of

available-for-sale securities - - - - - - 4,769,748 - - 4,769,748
Dividend paid 29 E = = = = = = - (272414129) (272414125)
Net loss for the year (restated) - - - - - - - - (1,777,877,344) (1,777,877,344)
Balance as at

31 December 2006

- as restated 1184644989 2828907312 445,631,620 - 490,645,383 = 2308761 103038015 [(1,472414376) 3582761704
Balance as at

31 December 2006

- as previously reported 1184644989 2828907312 445631620 123947,053 490,645,383 = 1337961 103038015 (1,381,544,880) 3,796,607,453
Cumulative effect of the change

in accounting palicy for

investments in subsidiaries,

jointly controlled entities

and associates 4 = = - (123947053 = = 970,800 = (30869,496)  (213,845,749)
Balance as at

31 December 2006

- as restated 1184644989 28283907,312 445,631,620 - 490,645,383 = 2308761 103038015 (1,472414376) 3582,761,704
Increase in share capital

from exercises of warrants 22, 24 1,563,630 = = = = e - = = 1,963,630
Increase in fair value of

available-for-sale securities = = = = = - 12457161 = = 12,457,161
Net income for the year = 3 3 A a & 3 v 23,537,678 23,537,678
Balance as at

31 December 2007 1186208619 28283907,312 445631620 - 490,645,383 - 14765922 103038015 (1448876698 3620320173

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Cash Flow Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)

2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) 21,671,121 (1,779,679,148) 23537678 (1,777,877,344)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash from (used in) operating activities:-
Depreciation 562,323,381 472,145,831 547,341,392 437,233,729
Doubtful debts recovery (42,833,405) (1,200,000) (42,833,405) (1,200,000)
Shares of loss (income) from investments
in jointly controlled entities and associates (1'5,571,203) 17,868,431 = =
Amortisation of excess of net book value of
subsidiary over cost of investment (3,496,230) (3,496,230) - -
Goodwill - written off 29,740,751 = & =
Unrealised loss on marketable securities 54,000 148,500 54,000 148,500
Loss on impairment of long-term investments 7,611,406 = 7,611,406 =
Loss (gain) on sales of long-term investments (25,770,843) 104,706,250 (25,770,843) 104,706,250
Reversal of allowance for impairment
of long-term investment (6,210,018) (110,000,000) (6,210,018) (110,000,000)
Loss (gain) from disposal and write off
of property, plant and equipments AP EET (1,373,620) 1,926,406 (1,166,718)
Unrealised gain (loss) on exchange rate 13,302,301 (5,1 36,302) 13,302,301 (5,1 36,302)
Increase (decrease) in provision for loss of projects (346,016,448) 718,230,137 (346,016,4486) 718,230,137
Net income attributable to minority interest (3,359,896) (2,872,180) - -
Income (loss) from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 195,660,530 (590,657,311) 172,942,471 (615,041,748)
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Trade accounts and notes receivable 132,709,432 (246,531,228) 475,445958  (253,673,081)
Trade accounts receivable - related parties 316,761,601 (104,0339,235) (63,812,765) (125,183,803)
Unbilled receivables (110,592,622) (713,882,732) (188,218,858) (597,305,152)
Construction in progress 698,767,710 113,742,818 698,767,710 113,006,652
Retention receivables 32822 (481,252,601) 7,834,186 (472,485,252)
Development cost of condominium units for sales 15,345,110 = - =
Other current assets (30,559,779) (604,359,148) 26,071,417 (579,925,571)
Other assets 331,040,062 (230,809,671 8) BRI IE9I5EE (236,424,678)
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade accounts and notes payable GESKIENE 20 1,295,451,764 468,455,869 1,189,531,294
Trade accounts payable - related parties (3,328,271) 3,005,227 (3,329,020) 3,005,976
Unbilled payable 374,853,541 3581021F858 879288786 802,783,411
Advances received from construction contracts (1,616,714,131) 671,254,085 (1,662,843,774) 690,143,072
Other current liabilities (98,815,189) 40,811,343 10,036,874 B5%0%28
Cash receipt under construction contract = 455,496,000 ~ 455,496,000
Other liabilities (258,073,110) 174,270,089 (365,169,245) 168,858,796
Income from investments - dividend received
from investment in associated company - - (8,399,100) (15,498,500)
Net cash flows from operating activities 382:58F 187 635,520,806 266,205,302 573,098,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Cash Flow Statements (Continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

(Unit: Baht)

Decrease in hire purchase and financial lease payable

(150,001,252)

(139,068,049)

(150,001,252)

2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in restricted bank deposits (58,484,929) 1,824,575 (58,484,928) 1,824,575
Cash received from current investment - treasury bills < 10,000,000 = iz
Increase in loans to related parties (2,658,952) (9,800,775) - -
Decrease (increase) in loans to other company 32,914,690 (5,315,000) - -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (294,574,9086) (638,077,209) (293,359,624) (636,819,139)
Cash paid for purchase of land awaiting for development (38,000,000) - = =
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipments 250,475,438 10,599,490 241,795,458 10,384,255
Purchase of other long-term investment (500,000) - (500,000) -
Net cash paid from purchase of subsidiary (Note 2.2) (763,847) - - -
Proceeds from sales of other long-term investments 39.997:8568 929 3V.50) 35,997,368 5,293,750
Dividend received 3898500 q3Lekelsksulg 8539 9%R00) 15,498,500
Net cash used in investing activities (67,196,018) (611,476,669) (66,152,626) (603,818,059)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions (527,530,487) (9939,012,160) (527,530,487) (999,012, 60)

(139,068,049)

Receipts from long-term loans 300,000,000 400,000,000 300,000,000 400,000,000
Repayment of bond (125,000,000) (125,000,000) (125,000,000)  (125,000,000)
Cash received from long-term loans from related parties = = 100,000,000 =
Proceeds from the exercises of warrants F568:680 755,800 ES686530] 7/515)8]0]a)
Proceeds from increase in share capital = 1,885,166,153 L EBESHIE 5SS
Dividend paid = (272,414,126) - (272414126)

Net cash from (used in) financing activities (500,968,109) 750,427,618 (400,968,109) 750,427,618

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (235,634,090) T7AGTA| 7515 (200,91 5,433) 718,707,703
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,305,953,674 531,481,919 .0, 777/4095! 451,069,392

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,070,319,584 1,305,953,674 969,861,662 1,170,777,095
Supplementary cash flows information
Cash paid during year for
Interest expense 95,898,508 104,424,696 95,489,600 104,424,696
Corporate income tax and withholdign income tax 408,262,395 82555418 397,536,694 306,629,260
Non-cash items
Increase of equipments from hire purchase
and financial lease agreements 2as 808830 140,693,976 235,333,830 140,693,976

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




SINO-THAI ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited (“The Company”) is a public company incorporated

and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the provision of construction services and its registered

address is 32/59-32/60, 29th-30th Floor, Sino-Thai Tower, Sukhumvit 21 Road, Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana, Bangkok.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the
Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547. The presentation of the financial statements has been made in compliance with
the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 14 September 2001, issued under
the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the
accounting palicies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited and the following subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities which are all incorporated

in Thailand:

Revenues as a
Assets as a percentage to the
Percentage of percentage to the consolidated total

Company’s name Nafture of shareholding consolidated total revenues
business assets as at for the year ended

31 December 31 December

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent

Subsidiaries

HTR Corporation Limited Office building rental 80.90 80.90 8lE9 3.92 0.38 033

Patumwan Real Estate Co. Ltd. Provision of document 80.90 80.90 0.05 = 0.02 =
(Wholly owned by HTR Corporation Limited) storage service

Kijpracha Tanee Co., Ltd. Real estate 80.90 = 2.18 - 0.09 =
(Whally owned by HTR Corporation Limited) development

Sino-Thai Joint Venture Construction 100.00 100.00 = = = =

S.L. Joint Venture Construction 70.00 70.00 572 2.75 2.50 1.42

S.A. Joint Venture Construction 80.00 = 11427 = 0.63 =

Joint venture
SJ Development Joint Venture Construction 50.00 50.00 0.01 0.01 H =
Sino-Thai-A.S. Joint Venture Construction 58.00 58.00 0.97 2.33 0.72 2.88

b) During the year 2007, HTR Corporation Limited (HTR) acquired 5.25 million of the additional ordinary shares of
Kijpracha Tanee Company Limted (Kijpracha) at par value, paying a total of Baht 52.5 million. It also acquired 0.7 million
ordinary shares from a former shareholder for a consideration of Baht 2.5 million (at the acquisition date Kijpracha had
cash and cash equivalents amounting to Baht 1.7 million). HTR therefore holds all shares of Kijpracha. As a result of the
above transactions, there is Baht 54.7 million of goodwill, of which Baht 25.0 million was recorded as “development cost
of condominium units for sale”, while the rest was written-off.

c) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

d) Investments in the subsidiaries as recorded in the Company’s books of account are eliminated against the
equity of the subsidiaries.

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled  entities and

associates presented under the cost method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.




SINO-THAI ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP) has issued Naotifications No. 9/2550, 38/2550 and 62/2550 re-
garding Accounting Standards. The notifications mandate the use of the following new Accounting Standards.
a) Thai Accounting Standards which are effective for the current year
TAS 44 (revised 2007) Consolidated Financial Statements and Separate Financial Statements
TAS 45 (revised 2007) Investments in Associates
TAS 46 (revised 2007) Interests in Joint Ventures
These accounting standards become effective for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after 1
January 2007. During the current year, the Company changed its accounting policy for recording investments in subsid-
iaries, jointly controlled entities and associates in the separate financial statements in order to comply with the revised
Thai Accounting Standards No. 44, 45 and 46 as discussed in Note 4.
b) Thai Accounting Standards which are not effective for the current year

TAS 25 (revised 2007 Cash Flow Statements

TAS 29 (revised 2007 Leases
TAS 31 (revised 2007 Inventories
TAS 33 (revised 2007 Borrowing Costs

)
( )
( )
( )

TAS 35S (revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

( )
( )
( )
( )

TAS 39 (revised 2007 Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
TAS 41 (revised 2007 Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 43 (revised 2007 Business Combinations

TAS 49 (revised 2007) Construction Contracts

TAS 51 Intangible Assets

These accounting standards will become effective for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or
after 1 January 2008. The management has assessed the effect of these revised accounting standards and believes that

they will not have any significant impact on the financial statements for the year in which they are initially applied.

4. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY FOR RECORDING INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES IN THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the current year, the Company changed its accounting policy for recording investments in subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates in the separate financial statements from the equity method to the cost method,
in compliance with Accounting Standard No. 44 (Revised 2007) regarding “Consolidated Financial Statements and Sepa-
rate Financial Statements”, under which investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are to be
presented in the separate financial statements under the cost method.

In this regard, the Company has restated the previous period’s separate financial statements as though the
investments in the subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates had originally been recorded using the cost

method. The change has the effect of net income in the separate income statements for the year ended 31 December

Separate financial
statements

Increase (decrease) 2007 2006

as following:

Net income (Million Baht) 2 2
Basic earnings per share (Baht per share) - -

Diluted earnings per share (Baht per share) - -

The cumulative effect of the change in accounting policy has been presented under the heading of “Cumulative
effect of the change in accounting policy for investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates” in the
separate statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Such change in accounting policy affects only the accounts related to investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates in the Company’s separate financial statements, with no effect to the consolidated

financial statements.



SINO-THAI ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Revenues and expenses recognition

a) Revenues

Revenues from construction

Revenues from construction are recognised on a percentage of completion basis based on the
assessment of the Company’'s engineers. The recognised revenue which is not yet due per the
contracts has been presented under the caption of “Unbilled receivables” in the balance sheets.
Revenues from sales of condominium units

Revenue from sales of condominium units are recognised as revenue when the
construction works are completed and the ownership is transferred to the buyer after receiving
payments in full.
Rental and relating service income

Rental and relating service incomes are recognised over the period of the lease agreement.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues taking into account the effective rate
method.
Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

b) Expenses

Costs of construction

Costs of construction are recognised in accordance with the percentage of work completed
based on total estimated costs. Provision for anticipated losses on construction projects is made in
the accounts in full when the possibility of loss is ascertained. Differences between the estimated
costs and the actual costs are recognised as current assets or current liabilities in the balance
sheets.
Cost of sales of condominium units

In determining the costs of condominium units sold, the anticipated total development costs

(after recognising the costs incurred to date) are attributed to units already sold on the basis of
the salable area and then recognised as costs in the income statement according to the recorded
sales.
Development cost of condominium units for sales are stated at cost, consisting of the cost of
land, construction costs, land pledging expenses, interest and other related costs.
5.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at bank and all highly
liguid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal
restrictions.
5.3 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts
is provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is
severally based on collection experiences and analysis of debtor aging.

5.4 Investments
a) Investments in securities held for trading are presented at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the carrying amounts of securities are included in determining income.
b) Investments in available-for-sale securities are determined at fair value. Changes in' the carrying
amounts of securities are recorded as separate items in shareholders’ equity until the' securities are
sold, when the changes are then included in determining income.
c) Investments in debt securities, both due within one year and expected to be held to maturity, are
recorded at amortised cost. The premium/discount on debt securities is amortised by the effective! rate
method with the amortised amount presented as an adjustment to the interest income.
d) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments,
are valued at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).
e) Investments in jointly controlled entities and associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method.
f) Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are accounted for in the separate
financial statements using the cost method.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last, working
day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The fair value of debt instruments is
determined based on the required rate of return or the yield rates quoted by the Thai Bond Market
Association.

The fair value of unit trusts is determined from their net asset value.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

In the event the Company reclassifies investments in securities, such investments are
adjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. Differences between the carrying amount of
the investments and their fair value on that date are included in determining income or recorded as
surplus (deficit) from change in the value of investments in shareholders’ equity, depending on the type
of investment which is reclassified.

5.5 Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost / revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date. Land for
rent, and land and condominium for rent were however subsequently revalued by independent appraisers,
to their fair values using the market comparison approach. Revaluations are to be made with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from their fair value at
the balance sheet date.

Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of the revaluation of the Company and
its subsidiaries’ assets, the increase is credited directly to equity under the heading of “Revaluation
surplus on assets”. However, a revaluation increase will be recognised as income to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an expense.

- When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the Company
and its subsidiaries’ assets, the decrease is recognised as an expense in the income statement.
However, a revaluation decrease is to be charged directly against the related “Revaluation surplus
of assets” to the extent that the decrease does not exceed the amount held in the “Revaluation
surplus of assets” in respect of those same assets. Any excess amount is to be recognised as an
expense in the income statement.

Depreciation of buildings and equipments is calculated by reference to the costs of assets or
the revalued amounts on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives:

Rental condominium 24  years
Buildings and building improvements 20 vyears
Leasehold improvements 10 vyears
Mock up room S years
Machinery and equipment 5 - 30 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment S years
Motor vehicles oL 10 years

The depreciation is dealt with the financial statements as follows:

- Depreciation attributed to the original cost portion is included in determining income.

- Depreciation attributed to the surplus portion is deducted against revaluation surplus in
shareholders’ equity.

No depreciation is provided for land, land improvements and construction in progress.

5.6 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control or are controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company
and its subsidiaries.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting
interest in the Company and its subsidiaries that gives them significant influence over the Company, its
subsidiaries, and key management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and
direction of the Company or its subsidiaries’ operations.

5.7 Long-term leases
Leases of property, plant or equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value
of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum l|ease payments. The outstanding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables, while the interest element is
charged to the income statements over the lease period. The property, plant or equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.8 Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the

transaction dates. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the balance
sheet date are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the balance sheet date, with the

exception of those covered by forward exchange contracts, which are translated at the contracted rates.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

5.9 Impairment of assets
The Company and its subsidiaries assess at each reporting date whether there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company and its subsidiaries
make an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
5.10 Employee benefits
Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are
recognised as expenses when incurred.
5.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligation as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
5.12 Income tax
in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in

Income tax is provided for

accordance with tax legislation.

Income tax of a subsidiary in the accounts based on the taxable profits
determined in accordance with tax legislation while the subsidiary has been electing to compute its

revenues and costs of sales of condominium units when installments come due.

is provided for

5.13 Use of accounting estimates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumption in certain circumstances, affecting amounts
statements and related notes. Actual results could differ from these

reported in the these financial

estimates.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Unit: Baht)
2007 2006 2007 2006
Cash on hand 4,814,247 5,817,574 4,797,981 5,885,357
Current and saving depaosits 192,770,842 288,705,609 128,717,141 153,541,247
Unit trusts 822,734,435 408,430,491 786,346,540 408,430,491
Bills of exchange 50,000,000 602,000,000 50,000,000 602,000,000
Total 1,070,319,584 1,305,953,674 969,861,662 1,170,777,095

The above unit trusts are unit

trusts in open-ended, fixed-income fund which is highly liguid:
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7. TRADE ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The outstanding balances of trade accounts and notes receivable are aged, based on due date, as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2007 2006 2007 2006

Unrelated parties
Not yet due 907,677,037 1,026,538,861 oi/a /99,922 984,259,193
Past due

Less than 4 months 312,032,922 422,380,568 308,586,317 400,823,599

5 -12 months 148,818,438 266,014,604 148,818,246 266,014,603

Over 12 months 239,459,782 366,333,768 235,459,782 366,141,772
Total 1,603,988,179 2,081,267,801 1,451,620,267 2,027,239,167
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (80,272,310) (223,556,802) (80,272,310) (223,556,802)

1,923,715,869

1,857,710,999

1,371,347,957

1,803,682,365

Related parties

Not yet due 3,015,944 34,873,483 155,624,867 48,922,122
Past due

Less than 4 months 1,274,884 314,749,224 45,513,625 335,740,712

5 -12 months 32,663,210 3,563,641 8y 7,800,358 6,904,104

Over 12 months 29,202,827 29,202,827 246,193,017 29,202,827

Total 66,156,865 382,389,175 485,111,820 420,769,765

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (29,202,827) (29,202,827) (29,202,827) (29,202,827)

36,954,038 353,186,348 455,908,993 391,566,938

Accounts and notes receivable - net 1,560,668,907 2,210,897,347 (B3 2Va=2s 61980 2,195,248,303

During the year 2007, the Company entered into a composition agreement with a local company, whereby
payment of Baht 43.2 million was requested in settlement of long outstanding receivables totaling Baht 83.2 million,
and such amount was received in the same period. The Company had previously set aside full allowance for bad debt
for this receivable and as a result of the composition agreement, the Company therefore recorded Baht 40.7 million of
the amount received as income from settlement of doubtful debt. The rest, which is compensations for legal expenses,
was recorded as other income.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties,
which have been concluded at contract price which can be comparable to the price for unrelated parties. Below is a
summary of those transactions.

(Unit : MillionBaht)
2007 2006 2007 2006
Transactions with related companies
Construction and service income 80 1,147 80 1,147
Cost of construction 30 25 30 29
Other income S 1 & =
Transactions with jointly controlled entities
(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)
Construction and service income 49 170 | 7/ 405

Transactions with associated company

Other income 8 6 8 6
Transactions with subsidiaries

(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)

Construction and service income = = S15¢) 206
Rental expenses = = 8 6
Interest expenses = - 3 =
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The balances of accounts as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 between the Company and those related companies
are as follows: (Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
Relationship 2007 2006 2007 2006
ASSETS
Trade accounts and notes receivable - related parties
HTR Corporation Limited Subsidiary = = = 107,000
Kijpracha Tanee Co., Ltd. Subsidiary s = 213,649,727 =
S.L. Joint Venture Subsidiary - = 186,957,071 3,773,847
S.A. Joint Venture Subsidiary = - 16,736,264 =
Sino-Thai-A.S. Joint Venture Joint venture 1,175452 25,144,160 2,798,694 58,867,047
Taisei-Sino-Thai Joint Venture Joint venture 1,699,738 67,511,231 1,699,738 67,511,231
Philipp Holzmann (Thai) /

U.T.M. Engineering / Sino-Thai Joint Venture Joint venture 10,224,752 10,224,752 10,224,752 10,224,752
TNNS Joint Venture Joint venture 33,837,224 260,177,538 33,937,224 260,177,538
P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited Associated company = 1,019 e =
Others 19,119,699 19,330,475 19,108,350 19,108,350
Total 66,156,865 382,389,175 485,111,820 420,768,765
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (28,202,827) (29,202,827) (29,202,827) (29,202,827)
Net 36,954,038 353,186,348 455,908,993 331,566,938
Unbilled receivables
S.L. Joint Venture Subsidiary = = 54,493,091 32,195,083
S.A. Joint Venture Subsidiary - = 95,627,407 =
Sino-Thai-A.S. Joint Venture Joint venture 36,332,802 95,959,004 86,506,671 228,473,819
Taisei-Sino-Thai Joint Venture Joint venture = 68,169,327 = 68,169,327
TNNS Joint Venture Joint venture 22,823,051 210,740,016 22,823,051 210,740,016
Total 59,155,853 374,868,347 258,450,220 539,578,245
Retention receivables
S.L. Joint Venture Subsidiary F = .4 18,631,017
S.A. Joint Venture Subsidiary = = 1,514,700 =
Sino-Thai-A.S. Joint Venture Joint venture 10,613,364 8,068,093 25,269,914 19,209,746
Taisei-Sino-Thai Joint Venture Joint venture g 35,801,230 = 35,801,230
TNNS Joint Venture Joint venture = 12,271,592 r 12,2A41591
Total 10,613,364 56,140,915 26,784,614 85,913,584

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
Relationship 2007 2006 2007 2006

Loans to related parties
P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited Associated company V58688658 71,843,014 = S
MMR Asia Company Limited Former associated company (KEE{K"98 11,611,793 151,78 14319788
Sino-Thai Tower Condominium Related party 15,619,863 17,857,760 = i
Juristic Person
The Joint Venture of Tomen Enterprise Joint venture 278,145 278,145 A4 278,145

(Bangkok) Limited / Sino-Thai Engineering

and Construction Ple. / Totems Cao., Ltd
IS Geo System Company Limited Former related company = 78,566,828 = 78,566,828

(written-off in 2007)
Total 104,349,664 180,257,540 11,883,938 90,456,766
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (11,889,938) (90,178,621) (11,889,938) (80,178,621)
Net 92,459,726 90,078,919 b 278,145
LIABILITIES
Trade accounts and notes payable-related parties
HTR Corporation Limited Subsidiary = = ~ 748
1P & [ [F, Common director = 780,041 = 780,041
STIT Co, Ltd. Common director 2,719,989 5,268,219 2,719,989 5,268,219
Total 2,718,989 6,048,260 2,719,989 6,049,008
Loans from related party
HTR Corporation Limited Subsidiary = = 100,000,080 =
Advances received from construction contracts
STP&I Ple. Common director 110,000,000 = 110,000,008 =
S.L. Joint Venture Subsidiary = - 310,661,387 372,233,002
S.A. Joint Venture Subsidiary . = 216,959,888 —
Sino-Thai-A.S. Joint Venture Joint venture S5 0)5AlE] 11,371,217 13,263,187 27,074,325
Taisei-Sino-Thai Joint Venture Joint venture = 27,195,645 = 27,195,645
TNNS Joint Venture Joint venture 195,831 18,986 195,831 18,986
Total 115,766,344 38,585,848 651,080,433 426,521,958
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During 2007, movements of loans to and loans from to related parties were as follow:

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

During the year Balance as at

Bal t
alance as a 31 December

Relationship 1 January 2007 Increase Decrease -

Loans to related parties
P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited Associated company 71,843,014 4,996,849 = 76,839,863
Sino-Thai Tower Condominium Related party {(\7:857%.60 = (2,337,897) 15,619,863
Juristic Person

The Joint Venture of Tomen

Enterprise (Bangkok)

Limited / Sino-Thai Engineering and

Construction Plc. / Totems Co., Ltd

(set provision up in 2007) Joint Venture 278545 - (278,145) -
Total 80,078,813 4,996,849 (2,616,042) 92,459,726

(Unit: Baht)
During the year Balance as at

Balance as at 31 December

Relationshi Increase Decrease
p 1 January 2007 5007

Loans to related parties
The Joint Venture of
Tomen Enterprise (Bangkok)
Limited / Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc. /
Totems Co., Ltd Joint Venture
Total 278,145 = (278,145) =

Loans from related parties

HTR Corporation Limited Subsidiary - 138,000,000 (38,000,000) 100,000,000

Loan to P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited

This loan has been long outstanding. However, P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited is improving its operating and
organisation structure. The Company’s management has considered that the loan will be recoverable in full.

Loan to Sino-Thai Tower Condominium Juristic Person

HTR Corporation Limited granted a loan of Baht 19 million to Sino-Thai Tower. The loan carries flat interest rate
at 8 percent for the whole contract period. The loan and relating interest are repayable in 72 installments of which Baht
of 0.39 million is monthly due. The first installment started in July 2006.

Loans from HTR Corporation Limited

Loans from HTR Corporation Limited are promissory notes repayable at call issued by the Company. These loans
carried interest at 4 percent per annum.

Directors and management’s remuneration

In 2007 the Company and its subsidiaries paid salaries, meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors and
management totaling Baht 29.7 million (The Company only: Baht 27.9 million) (2006: Baht 25.8 million, The Company only:
Baht 24.8 million).
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9. DEVELOPMENT COST OF CONDOMINIUM UNITS FOR SALES

(Unit : Baht)
2007
Land 71,906,832
Construction costs 289,865,089
Borrowing costs 3,340,510
Other costs 7503783
Total 365,863,164
Less: Accumulated costs transferred to cost of sales (65,353,814)
Total development cost of condominium units for sales 300,509,350

The land and relating development costs are mortgaged as collateral for loans from other person, as being dis-

cussed in Note 20.

10. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE / UNDUE OUTPUT TAX RELATING TO CONSTRUCTION OF
SUVARNABHUMI AIRPORT RAIL LINK CONTRACT

The balances were value added tax and withholding tax relating to construction of Suvarnabhumi Airport Rail
Link contract made with State Railway of Thailand (SRT). Such tax obligations arise when the SRT pays the banks to
which the rights of claim were transferred, after construction is completed no later than November 2007 according to
the contract. Subsequently, the Company and other joint contractors have jointly entered into an agreement with SRT,
to extend the construction period for another 180 days, starting from 6 November 2007. The agreement causes SRT to
pay the banks for the completed part of the construction work in November 2007 and the relevant tax obligations are

due at the same time. As at 31 December 2007, such amount has been paid.

11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Shareholding

Company’s name Paid-up capital percentage Cost
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(MillionBaht) (MillionBaht) (%) (%)
HTR Corporation Limited 500 500 80.90 80.90 440,090,005 440,090,005

12. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

As at 31 December 2007, the Company had investments in two jointly controlled entities, of which the total
net book values were Baht 14.9 million. The Company had already recorded full allowance for impairment of investment
of such investment and provision for losses of jointly controlled entity, amounting to Baht 2.4 million for another jointly
control eintity.

The jointly controlled entity ceased its operations and its financial information therefore has no significant impact
to the Company’s financial statements.

Summarised financial information of the operated jointly controlled entity.

Sino-Thai A.S. Joint Venture

The Company’s proportionate shares of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of Sino-Thai A.S. Joint Ven-

ture are as follows:
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(Unit : Million Baht)

As at 31 December

2007 2006
Current assets 144 368
Current liabilities (148) (368)
Net liabilities (2 -

(Unit : Million Baht)

For the years ended 31 December

2007 2006
Revenue 126 424
Cost of sales (126) (424

Selling and administrative expenses

(1)

Net loss

(1)

Share of income or loss from the operating results of jointly controlled entities was determined based on the
financial statements prepared by their managements and neither audited nor reviewed by their auditors. Most of joint
ventures have no activity. The Company believes that the value of the investments would not significantly differ if the

financial statements had been audited or reviewed by auditors.

13. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

13.1 Details of associates which are all incorporated in Thailand:

(Unit: Baht)
Company’s name NatL_lre of Shareholding Cost Carrying amounts based
business percentage on equity method

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

(%) (%)
DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Company Telecommunication  and 35.00 35.00 2,799,700 2,799,700 2081556797 196,384,694
Limited transmission lines installation
P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited Resort 37.22 37.22 68,001,000 68,001,000 5 3
S T F M Company Limited Produce of cable lines but  50.00 50.00 5,000,000 5,000,000 8,985,577 8,885,577
(formerly known as ACS Asia has ceased operation

Company Limited)
Less : Provision for impairment of (8,985,577) (8,985,577)

investment

Total 75,800,700 75,800,700 203,556,797 196,384,694
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

q Nature of Shareholding Provision for impairment Carrying amounts based
Company’'s name ) Cost )
business percentage of investments on cost method- net
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(%) (%)
DKK_ Sino-Thai Telecom-
ino-Thai R 35.00 35.00 2,799,700 2,799,700 = - 2,799,700 2,799,700
Engineering Company and trans-
e mission lines
Limited installation
S T F M Company Produce of 50.00 50.00 5,000,000 5,000,000 (5,000,000) (5,000,000) = =
Limited cable lines but
(formerly known as [raa e e
“ACS Asia Company ‘
operation
Limited”)
Total 7,799,700 7,799,700 (5,000,000) (5,000,000) 2,799,700 2,799,700
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Share of income (loss) from
Dividend received
investments in associates
during the year
during the year

2007 2006 2007 2006
DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Company Limited (5:5Vl208 21,716,262 8,399,100 13,998,500
P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited - (39,583,047) - -
S T F M Company Limited
(formerly known as “ACS Asia Company Limited”) - - - -
Total (Stsvalr203 (17,866,785) Sheiefsl o 13,998,500

13.2 Summarised financial information of associates.

(Unit |: Million Baht)

Total q
Paid-up Total Total NEE INEEE
revenues for the (loss) for the
capital as at assets as at liabilities as at
year ended 31 year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
December 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
DKK' Sino-Thai Engineering Company Limited” 8 8 665 692 83 131 635 436 A4 52
P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited® 148 148 392 417 476 448 48 43 (53) (92)
S T F M Company Limited® 10 10 6 5] 14 14 - - (1) (1)

(formerly known as “ACS Asia Company Limited”)

13.3 The Company recognised share of losses from investments in two associates, as listed below, until the
value of the investments reached zero. Subsequent losses incurred by those associates have not been recognised
in the Company’s accounts since the Company has no obligations, whether legal or constructive, to make any

payments on behalf of those associates. The amount of such unrecognised share of losses is set out' below.
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Unrecognised share of losses

Share of losses for the Cumulative share
Company’s name year ended of losses up to
31 December 2007 31 December 2007
P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited® 20 8l
S T F M Company Limited® = 4
(formerly known as “ACS Asia Company Limited”)
Total 20 85

1. Financial information and share of income or loss were determined based on the financial statements
prepared by its managements and neither audited nor reviewed by its auditors. The Company believes that the value of the
investments would not significantly differ if the financial statements had been audited or reviewed by auditors.

2. Financial information for the year 2007 was financial information as at 31 July 2007 and determined based on
the financial statements prepared by its managements and neither audited nor reviewed by its auditors.

3. Financial information was that as at 31 December 2007.

14. OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

(Unit : Baht)
ey (et . ansolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
% %

Investments in available-for-sale securities
Bangkok Commercial Property Fund - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 = =
STP&I Public Company Limited 1.01 1.01 7,687,413 7,687,413 7,687,413 7,687,413

17,687,413 17,687,413 7,687,413 7,687,413
Add : Unrealised gains on available-for-sale securities 13,465,922 1,108,761 14,765,922 2,308,761

S(RIISSI8ES 18,796,174 22,453,335 9,996,174
Other investments
Abico Land Company Limited 15.00 15.00 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000
Peroxy Thai Company Limited = 244 = 10,226,523 = 10,226,525
Thai Maintenance Contracting Company Limited 19.00 19.00 7,611,405 7,611,405 7,611,405 7,611,405
Thai Contractors Asset Co., Ltd. 0.20 = 500,000 = 500,000 =
Others 86,193,576 86,192,423 86,141,573 86,141,573

124,304,981 134,030,353 124,252,978 133,979,503
Less : Allowance for impairment of investments (111,153,022) (109,751,635) (111,153,022) (108,751,635)

{BL151EEE 24,278,718 13,099,956 24,227,868
Other long-term investments-net 44,305,294 43,074,892 8515581k 34,224,042

During the year 2007, the Company sold investment of Peroxy Thai Limited of which net book value was Baht 4.0

million with total consideration of amounting to Baht 36.0 million.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Consolidated financial statements

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit : Baht)

Revaluation basis Cost basis Total
Land and Land Land and Buildings Leasehold  Machinery Furniture, Vehicles Construction
fixtures and
improvements and rental land and building improvements and office in progress
for rents condominium  improvements improvements equipment equipment

Cost/reappraised value
31 December 2006 560,048,021 1,429,730,993 335227440 164,060,083 47,206,501 2945545926 200,858,369 413634442 528817431 6,625,129212
Additions = = = 63,104 = 346,268,964 15,830,869 4674178 162971622 529,908,737
Disposals (15,280,458) S (56,000) (344,000) - (596,946,838) (9,708,920) (36,020,340) - (658,357,556)
Transfers = == E&EE 7R 2,885,738 = 546,969,974 54,482 87,796 (646,289,728) =
Acquisitions of subsidiary = = = 1,894,535 > = 293,247 = 5 2,187,782
during the year
31 December 2007 544,767,563  1,429,730,993 431,463,178 168,559,466 47,206,501 3,241,838026 207,427,047 382,376,076 45,499,325 6498,868,175
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2006 - 1,136,104,147 - 904575541 31517977 967,886443 141,606,535 261,999,869 2629157251 2!
Depreciation & 13,893450 = 8943915 2633216 465440415 21,056,346 50,356,041 = 562,323,383
Amortisation of surplus = 45,824,365 = = = = = = = 45,824,365
Disposals = S & (47,664) - (358,288579) (8840,819) (31,997,269) - (398,174,331)
Transfers - - - - - 1,115 (1,119) - - -
Acquisitions of subsidiary = = 5 806,151 = = 143,083 = = 948,234
during the year
31 December 2007 - 1,195,821,962 - 100,159,843 34,151,193 1,075039,394 153,964,030 280,358,641 - 2,839495,163
Net book value
31 December 2006 560,048,021 293,626,846 335227440 73,602,548 15,688,524 1,977,658,483 59,251,834 151634573 528817431 3,995,556,700
31 December 2007 544,767,563 233,909,031 431,463,178 68,399,523 13,055,308 2,166,798,632 53463017 102,017,435 45499325 3,658,373,012
SEEEC[‘;;E; ﬁfg;.tsherrlﬁoa; included in cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) w
2007 (Baht 532.8 million included in cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) w
Net book value (if the assets carried at cost)
31 December 2006 110,924,245 99,484,938
31 December 2007 99,135,944 85,591,488

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements

Revaluation

Cost basis Total
basis
Land and Land Land and Buildings Leasehold Machinery Furniture, Vehicles Construction
fixtures and
improvements and rental land and building improvements and ofice in progress

for rents condominium  improvements improvements equipment equipment
Cost/reappraised value
31 December 2006 544,767,564 335227440 164,060,089 47,206,501 2,945,545,927 169,718,444 411,339,243 528,817,431 5,146,683,639
Additions = = 63,104 = 346,268,964 15,319,435 4,070,328 162,971,621 528,693,452
Disposals = (56,000) (344,000) = (596,946,838) (9,306,706) (36,020,340) 3 (642,673,884)
Transfers = 96,291,738 2,885,738 = 546,969,973 54,482 87,796 (646,289,727) =
31 December 2007 544,767,564 431,463,178 166,664,931 47,206,501 3,241,838,026 175,786,655 379,477,027 45,499,325 5,032,703,207
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2006 = = 90,457,541 31,517,977 967,886,443 111,905,409 261,443,164 = 1,463,210,534
Depreciation = = 8943914 2633216 465,440,415 20,434,667 49,889,179 = 547,341,391
Disposals = = (47,663) = (358,288,579) (8,618,509) (31,997,270) < (398,992,021)
Transfers - - - - M5 QXS - - -
31 December 2007 = = 99,353,792 34,151,193  1,075,039,394 123,720,452 279,335,073 & 1,611,598,804
Net book value
31 December 2006 544,767,564 335,227,440 73,602,548 15688524  1,977,659484 57,814,035 148,896,079 528,817,431 3,683473,105
31 December 2007 544,767,564 431,463,178 67,311,139 13055308  2,166,798,632 52,066,203 100,141,954 45,499,325 3421,103,303

Depreciation for the year

2006 (Baht 423.4 million included in cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses)

2007 (Baht 518.1million included in cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses)

Net book value (if the assets carried at cost)

31 December 2006

99,135,844

31 December 2007

99,135,944

457,253,729
547,341,391
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Breakdown of property, plant and equipment carried on the revaluation basis and their accumulated

depreciation is as follows:
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2007 2006
Land and Land and Land and Land and
improvements rental improvements rental

for rents condominium for rents condominium
Original cost 99,135,944 362,164,183 110,924,245 362,164,193
Surplus from revaluation 449,123,776 1,067,566,800 449,123,776 1,067,566,800

(3,492,157) = = =
Revalued amount 544,767,563 1,429,730,993 560,048,021 1,428,730,983
Accumulated depreciation on original cost - 2V 657205 - 262,679,255
Accumulated depreciation on revaluation surplus = 919,249,257 = 873,424,892
Accumulated depreciation on revalued amount 3 1,195,821,962 - 1,136,104,147

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements

Land and improvements from rents

2007 2006
Original cost 99135944 99,135,944
Surplus from revaluation 445,631,620 445,631,620
Revalued amount 544,767,564 544,767,564

In October 2006, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued Notification No. 25/2006 allowing entities
which carry their property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts to calculate depreciation to be charged to the
income statements based on the historical costs of the assets instead of on the revalued amounts. The Company has
decided to follow the notification. However, had the depreciation charge been calculated based on the revalued amounts,

net income and earnings per share would have been changed to the following:

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
Net loss (Baht) (15) (1,817) - -
Basic loss per share (Baht per share) (0.01) (1.54) - -
Diluted loss per share (Baht per share) (0.01) (1.54) - -

As at 31 December 2007, certain plant and equipment items had been fully depreciated but were still in use.
The original cost, before deducting accumulated depreciation, of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 498.2

million (2006: Baht 569.5 million) (The Company only: Baht 463.0 million, 2006: Baht 543.1 million).

As at 31 December 2007, the Company had equipment and vehicles acquired under hire purchase agreement and

financial lease agreements, with net book value amounting to approximately Baht 521.2 million (2006: Baht 353.7 million).
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16. BANK OVERDRAFT AND SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Bank overdrafts and short-term from financial institutions as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 consist of:

(Unit : Baht)
Interest rate Consolidated financial statements/
(percent per annum) Separate financial statements
2007 2006
Bank overdrafts 7.10 - 8.00 125,953,306 40,015,939
Short-term loans from financial institutions 5.75 Uas 6.85 342,000,000 344,169,909
Bill of exchanges issued to open-end funds - - 611,297,945
Total 467,953,306 995,483,793
17. PROVISION FOR LOSS ON CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS e,
nit : Ba

Consolidated financial statements/
Separate financial statements

Balance as at 31 December 2006 721,244,312
Add: Recorded in the year 64,077,678
Less : Decrease in provision as project cost actually occurred in the year (410,094,124)
Balance as at 31 December 2007 375,227,866

In current circumstances, prices of construction materials and wages, oil and transportation costs have
significantly risen. In addition, major construction contracts have been extended due to uncontrollable external factors.
Because of these, the Company had to reconsider its project costs in detail. In the mentioned circumstances, the

Company noted loss from long term projects and recorded the whole amount of loss into income statements in 2007.

The Company believes that if the above events do not significantly change, the recorded provision for loss is adequately
set in the current situation.

18. LIABILITIES UNDER HIRE PURCHASE AND FINANCIAL LEASE AGREEMENTS
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/
Separate financial statements

2007 2006
Liabilities under hire purchase and lease agreements 360,817,658 255,435,209
Less: Deferred interest expense (42,137,893) (22,088,021)
Less: Portion due within one year (140,413,087) (116,745,938)
Liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease
agreements - net of current portion 178,266,678 116,601,250

As at 31 December 2007, there were the following commitments payable under hire purchase and financial lease
agreements by the Company:

Year Million Baht
2008 161.8
2009 82.6
2010 - 2011 116.4
360.8

19. DEBENTURES

On 1 October 2003, an extraordinary meeting of the shareholders of the Company approved the issue of Baht
500 million of S-years unsecured amortising debentures. The debentures are to bear interest at a rate of 4 percent
per annum, payable semi-annually, and principal are to be repaid in annual installments of Baht 125 million as from the
second year. The debentures issued are made with normal covenants, pertaining to matters such as the maintenance
of financial ratios and dividend payments.
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20. LONG-TERM LOANS

(Unit : Baht)
2007 2006
Long-term loans from bank 700,000,000 400,000,000
Other long-term loan 70,692,013 -
770,692,013 400,000,000
Less: Current portion (500,000,000) (400,00,000)
Long term loans - net of current portion 270,692,013 =
(Unit : Baht)
2007 2006
Long term loan 700,000,000 400,000,000
Less: Current portion (500,000,000) (400,00,000)
Long term loans - net of current portion 200,000,000 -

Long-term loans from bank

The Company entered into an agreement with a local commmercial bank granting a loan amounting to Baht 400
million, on which interest is charged at MLR% per annum. The loan is repayable in 4 monthly installments at Baht 100
million each, with the first of these due in August 2007.

During the year 2007, the Company and its bank have agreed to extend the repayment dates of Baht 400
million loan, which was previously presented the whole balance as a current portion. The first installment will be due in
May 2008 on a monthly basis of Baht 100 million each. The Company is to make full payment of the loan principal
in August 2008. As of 31 December 2007, the loan was already presented based on this extension.

In addition, the Company entered into an agreement with a local commercial bank granting a loan amounting
to Baht 300 million, on which interest is charged at MLR% per annum. The loan is repayable in 3 installments annually
of Baht 100 million each. The first installment will be due in June 2008. The Company will repay all of the principal in
2010.

Most loan agreements contain certain covenants and restrictions imposed by providing guarantees to loans or
aval to promissory notes of any other persons or other companies, merger or consolidation with any other companies,
and the maintenance of certain financial ratios.

Other long-term loan

Other long-term loan from other person of subsidiary is promissory notes repayable at call. The subsidiary
expects the lenders not to call for repayment in the near future. In addition, the lender issued representation letters
confirming that is not to call for repayment within 1 year starting from the balance sheets dates. Therefore, the loan
and interest payable are presented as non-current liabilities in the balance sheets.

The subsidiary has mortgaged its ownership of condominium units for sales as collaterals for the loan from
other person. This loan is carrying interest rate at 2.5 percent per annum.

21. CASH RECEIPT UNDER CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

In the year 2007, the Company received of USD 12 million from an overseas company which is a consortium
with the Company under a construction contract. The overseas company agreed to grant this amount of money to
the Company for use in the construction project. It is to be repaid at the end of 2008. The Company entered into a
forward exchange contract to hedge currency risk, as will be discussed in Note 35 to the financial statements.
22. SHARE CAPITAL

The movements of the Company’s paid-up share capital are as following:

For the year 2007

Number of ordinary shares

Warrants exercises in STEC-W STEC-W2
March 2007 513,940 =
May 2007 1,049,690 -

1,563,630 5
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For the year 2006

Number of ordinary shares

Warrants exercises in STEC-W STEC-W2

December 2005 6,600 -

March 2006 71,600 80,000

October 2006 4,200 -

Total 82,400 80,000
Shares

Total increase in ordinary shares due to warrants exercises 162,400

Increase in share capital* 160,000,000

Total number of shares increases 160,162,400

* In January 2007, at the Meeting of Board of Directors was resolved to distribute the 160 million ordinary
shares of Baht 1 each. The ordinary shares have a offering price of Baht 12.10 per share, totaling amount
received from this share sale of Bath 1,936 million. There were expenses occurred regarding to the share
increase of Baht 50.83 million which were recorded as a deduction of share premium. All of the shares

increase was sold during 12 to 16 January 2006.

23. REVALUATION SURPLUS

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
Balance - beginning of year 9 ESSVEIEYE 606,650,580 445,631,620 445,631,620
Amortisation of revaluation surplus by
a subsidiary (proportionate to the Company’s investment) (37,071,907) (37,071,907) - -
Sale of revaluation asset during the year (2,825,154) - - -
Balance - end of year 529,681,612 569,578,673 445,631,620 445,631,620

The revaluation surplus can neither be offset against retained deficit nor used for dividend payment.

24. WARRANTS

The Company issued warrants twice. The warrants are listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand and are

detailed as follows:

Warrants’ names in the Stock
Exchange of Thailand

STEC-W STEC-W2
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders resolution date 14 February 2002 16 August 2004
Total number of warrants issued (units) 170,000,000 170,000,000
Ratio of existing ordinary shareholders’ rights to purchase
warrants (ordinary shares : warrants) SR 6 11
Proposed selling prices for 1 unit of warrants (Baht) none 3.0%
Exercised period as from the issued date (years) S 8
Expired date 30 May 2007 18 April 12008
Exercised ratio (warrant : ordinary share) 9= £4 .0
Exercised price (Baht per unit) 10 8.5
Remaining unexercised warrants on 31 December 2006 (units) 1,806,550 163,548,461
Remaining unexercised warrants on 31 December 2007 (units) - 163,548,461

* STEC-We were proceeded in 2005 with total proceeds of Baht 510 million.
** STEC-W expired and could not be used since 31 May 2007.
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25. STATUTORY RESERVE

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set
aside to a statutory reserve at least S percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward
(if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend

distribution.

26. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED COSTS

Consolidated financial

Separate financial

statements statements
2007 2006 2007 2006
Number of employees at end of year (Persons) 1,040 951 1,019 934
Employee costs for the year (Thousand Baht) 684,565 554,726 679,408 549,098

27. CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Company has no corporate income tax payable since the tax losses brought forward from the previous
year exceed the net income for the year.
28. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) for the year by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the sum of the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year and the weighted average number of ordinary shares which
would need to be issued to convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes
that the conversion took place either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares

were issued.

Consolidated financial statements

. Weighted average Earnings
Net income .
number of ordinary shares per share
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Baht Baht Shares Shares Baht Baht
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) 2Al 57412 (1,779,679,148) 1,185,606,208 1,177,586,752 0.02 (1.51)
Effect of dilutive securities
Warrants - - 1,268,543 1,580,493
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Net earnings (loss) of ordinary shareholders
assuming the conversion of dilutive securities 21,671,121 (1,779,679,148) 1,186,874,731 1,179,167,245 0.02 4159)
Warrants outstanding (unit)
31 December 2007 163,548,461
31 December 2006 1E5EEEHL]

Separate financial statements

Net income Weighted .average Earnings
number of ordinary shares per share
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Baht Baht Shares Shares Baht Baht
(Restated) (Restated)
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) 23,537,678 (1,777,877,344) 1,185,606,208 1,177,586,752 0.02 ([@:5)
Effect of dilutive securities
Warrants = = 1,268,543 1,580,493
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Net earnings (loss) of ordinary shareholders
assuming the conversion of dilutive securities 23,537,678 (1,777,877,344) 1,186,874,731 1,179,167,245 0.02 (151
Warrants outstanding (unit)
31 December 2007 163,548,461
31 December 2006 165,355,011
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There is no calculation of diluted loss per share for the year 2006 as such calculation would decrease loss
per share.

STEC-We warrants are excluded from the potential ordinary shares for calculation of earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2007, since their exercise price is excess of the fair value of the ordinary shares.

29. DIVIDEND
Dividend declared in 2006 consist of the following:

Approved by Annual General Dividend -
Total dividends

Meeting of Shareholders on per share
(Baht) (Million)

Dividend on 2005 income 28 April 2006 0.23 2724

30. CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS

As at 31 December 2007, the Company’s aggregate amount of construction cost incurred and recognised profits or
losses to date for contracts in progress was approximately Baht 37,195 million (2006: Baht 28,017 million) and gross amounts
due from customers for contracts progress were approximately baht 4,636 million (2006: Baht 5,147 million).

31. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

The operations of the Company and its subsidiaries principally involve construction contracting, office building rental
and property development, and are mostly carried on in the geographic area of Thailand. As a result, all of the revenues, op-
erating income (loss) and assets as reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned industry segments

and geographic area. The financial information by segment is as follow:

(Unit : Million Baht)
Construction Office building rental

contracting and property development Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Construction and rental income 17,824 155105 78 49 17,897 15,154
Intersegment revenues (607) (441) (8) 8) (615) (447)
Total revenues V724 7 14,664 65 43 17,282 14,707
Segment income (loss) (38) (1,768) (29) 7 (87) (1,781)
Unallocated income (expenses)
Interest income 8 64
Other income 18§ 46
Share of gain (loss) from investment in
jointly controlled entities and associated 16 (18)
Interest expenses (94} (104)
Corporate income tax (12) (9)
Minority interest ) 3
Net income (loss) 2P (1,779)
As at 31 December
Property, plant and equipment 3,421 3,683 288 312 3,659 3,995
Other assets 9,858 11,484 509 307 10,367 14,781
Total assets 13,279 13,467 747 619 14,026 15,786

32. CREDIT FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the credit facilities of the Company and subsidiaries granted by financial
institutions were secured by the guarantees and mortgages/pledges of the assets listed below.

1. Fixed deposits totaling Baht 58.8 million (2006: Baht 0.3 million).

2. 8.3 million shares of HTR Corporation Limited (2006: 9.3 million shares).

3. Pledge of the Company’s land with net book value of Baht 717 million (2008: Baht 545 million).

4. Pledge of office condominiums with net book value of Baht 0.79 million (2006: Baht 3.0 million).
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5. The transfer of the right of the claim of collections from construction contracts to a bank. The Company
can normally withdraw from the transfer. As at 31 December 2007, the balance of the accounts receivable under the
right transfer agreement was Baht 2739 million (2006: Baht 279 million).

6. An associated company’s investments in 562,500 ordinary shares of P.P. Coral Resort Company Limited in
order to secure loan facility of P.P Coral Resort Company Limited.

33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2007, the commitments and contingent liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries
were listed below.
33.1 There were outstanding letters of guarantee totaling Baht 10,137 million (2006: Baht 11,208 million),
issued by financial institutions on behalf of the Company in respect of certain performance bonds as required
in the normal course of the businesses of the Company, subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities.
33.2 The Company has been sued for compensation totaling approximately Baht 91 million. The cases are still
being considered by the Court. The Company’'s management believes that the outcome of these cases will be
favorable to the Company and therefore no provision for liability has been set aside in the accounts.

34. PROVIDENT FUND

The Company, its subsidiaries and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with
the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Employees, the Company and its subsidiaries contributed to the fund monthly at
the rate of 3-5 percent of basic salaries. The fund, which is managed by BOA Asset Management Company Limited,

will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

35.1 Financial risk management policies

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 48 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise as follow.

Financial assets Financial liabilities

- (Cash and cash equivalents - Short-term loans

- Trade accounts and note receivable Trade accounts and note payable

- Retention receivable - Hire purchase creditor
- Loans - Financial lease payable
- Advances to subcontractors - Debenture

- Long-term loans
- Advances received from construction contracts

- Cash receipts under construction contract

The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to
construction receivables and loans. However, due to their prudent credit policy, most of their customers being
government agencies, and their close follow up of debt, analysing financial paosition on an ongoing basis, the Company
and subsidiaries do not anticipate material losses from their debt collection in excess of those for which provision
has already been set aside.
Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks,
short-term and long-term loans, hire purchase creditor, financial lease payable and debentures which are subject to
interest. However, because most of the financial assets and liabilities have floating interest rates which fluctuate in
line with market interest rates or fixed interest rates which will be due within a short period, the interest rate risk
iIs expected to be minimal.

As at 31 December 2007, the significant financial assets and liabilities, exposing to interest rate risk
, classified by type of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities
that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on maturity, or the repricing date, if this occures before the
maturity date.
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(Unit : Million)

Consolidated financial statements

Fixed interest

rates
Interest rate Within Over Floating Total
(% p.al) 1 year 1 year interest rate
Financial Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 0s10) i 23 30 = 930 1,040
- Long term loan to related parties 2.50 laz13.89 2 13 77 92
52 {3 1,067 HI82
Financial liabilities
- Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions 5.75 162 = 306 468
- Hire purchase creditor 5.39 - 7.80 40 6 =5 46
- Financial lease payable 6.28 - 7.69 101 172 = 273
- Debentures 4.00 125 = = 125
- Long term loans 6.88 = 71 700 774
428 249 1,006 1,683

(Unit : Million)

Separate financial statements

Fixed interest

rates
Interest rate Within Over . Floating Total
(% p.a) 1 year 1 year interest rate
Financial Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 050)-= 225 350 = 914 964
50 = 914 864
Financial liabilities
- Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions 3.75 162 - 306 468
- Hire purchase creditor 5.39 - 7.80 40 6 = 46
- Financial lease payable GI28E-Nv7 59 101 172 = 273
- Debentures 4.00 125 = = 25
- Long-term loans 6.88 = = 700 700
- Long-term loan from related party 4.00 100 = = 100
528 178 1,006 U742

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to significant foreign currency risk in respect of purchase transactions and services
renders, and advance received for constructions denominated in foreign currencies. However, the Company has 'entered
into forward contracts to mitigate the foreign currency risk.

As at 31 December 2007, the outstanding balances of the Company’s financial assets and- liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are summarised below.

Foreign currency Financial assets Financial liabilities
usD = 158,000,000
JPY 327,859 12,173,000
EURO 191,283 =

As at 31 December 2007, the Company had the following outstanding forward contracts:
1. During the year 2006, the Company entered in to a forward exchange contract to hedge currency risk of

JPY denominated payable, as detailed below.

Period Amount Settlement
SHac ne. (Million JPY) date
1 80 31 March 2008

2 78 31 March 2009
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The exchange rates under this contract were agreed upon conditional on future JPY exchange rate. The
contractual exchange rate is 0.3950 Baht/JPY, if the yen ever trades at or below 0.3145 Baht/JPY at anytime during
the period before each settlement date, the exchange rate will be set at 0.3380 Baht/JPY, while if yen ever trades
above 0.3145 Baht/JPY at anytime during the same period. If the yen trades in the same period above the knock out
rates, specified in the contract, of 0.4100 and 0.4200 Baht/JPY for each of the above period respectively, no exchange
will be made and the Company will use market exchange rate in paying the debts.

During the year 2007, average the yen traded below 0.3145 Baht/JPY, so the Company recorded all amount
using 0.3950 Baht/JPY according to the contract.

2. During the year 2006, the Company entered in to a forward exchange contract to hedge
currency risk of USD of cash receipt under construction contract from an overseas company which is a consortium, as

detailed below.

The contractual

Contract Amount Settlement date
.y (Million USD) exchange rate (Baht/USD)
1 6 37.9000 24 December 2008
2 6 37.8200 24 December 2008

35.2 Fair value of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-term in nature. Loans
given to and loans from others mostly bear floating interest rates. Majority of loans bear fixed interest rate are
going to due within 2 years. Fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the
balance sheets.

Fair value of foreign exchange contracts of the Company is not significant different from their net book value.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the

financial instrument or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

36. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s by Audit Committee on 18
February 2008.
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